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“The record gross new business achieved across our
core divisions is the result of our strong and able
teams and firm commitment to delivering good
service and investment performance to the clients
on whom our business depends.”

Colin Ross Chairman



Our Mission

By combining an innovative approach with proven investment
skills, we seek to deliver investment solutions tailored

to meet the needs of our dlients around the world.

Summary financial information

Year to Year to
31 January 2001 31 January 2000
Turnover £36,340,000 £29,935,000
Operating profit £11,353,000 £10,028,000
Pre-tax profit (including goodwill and exceptionals) £12,210,000 £12,104,000
Earnings per share (excluding goodwill and exceptionals) 3l4p 27.5p
Dividends per share 25.0p 25.0p
Number of shares in issue 28.5 million 27.8 million
Funds under management £8.6 billion £8.0 billion
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Colin Ross Chairman

Edinburgh Fund Managers enjoyed another year of
record gross new business in 2000. Our long term
strategy of developing our business in four key,
diversified areas has resulted in continued growth.

Chairman’s Statement

Highlights of 2000

New business: new business growth
resulted in a second successive year of record
gross sales, up by 70% to £70¢ million - the
highest ever achieved by the group. This
excludes £90 million from the acquisition of
Northern Venture Managers

Turnover: increased by 21% to
£36.3 million

Earnings per share (excluding goodwill
and exceptionals): increased by 14% 1o
31.4p

Funds under management: increased by
6.6% to £8.6 billion, representing a 3.8%
increase above market growth

Business development: good progress
was made in all four areas of the strategic
development plan (strategic partnerships,
intermediaries, private clients and the
institutional market)

Acquisition: Funds under management at
Northern Venture Managers up by 67% to
£150 million in the eight months since
acquisition

Business performance

I am pleased to report that during 2000 the
group maintained its recent pattern of steady
growth in revenues, earnings and funds
under management.

The substantial commitment made to
developing the group’s marketing and sales
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resources over the past three years was
rewarded by a further year of record gross
new business, which rose 70% to

£700 million.

All four key areas of new business
performed well. Northern Venture Managers,
the Newcastle based venture capital
management firm, made a very pleasing
contribution of £2.2 million to revenues for
the group since its acquisition in June,
increasing its funds under management by
67% from £90 million to £150 million in its
first eight months within the group.

Funds under management overall rose
6.6% to £8.6 billion in the year to
31 January 2001, against the background of
a rise of 2.8% in the markets in which we are
invested.

The £6.4 million (21%) increase in gross
revenues to £36.3 million is a result of both
this growth and the continuing trend
towards higher margin business within the
new business won, whilst costs rose 24%,
reflecting our continued investment in
developing the business. The costs of
Northern Venture Managers since June were
£1.7 million. The company was acquired to
expand our expertise in the smaller
companies end of the market.

Earnings per share rose from 27.5p per
share to 31.4p, an increase of 14%. The
proposed final dividend of 17p makes a total
dividend payourt of 25p, which is unchanged
from last year.



Review of the year

The millennium year was the fourth year of
our strategic development plan, which set out
to build strong, consistent growth from a
secure, diversified business mix of
distribution and products.

Our existing strategic partnerships,
under which we provide investment
management and retail expertise to major
banks and life companies in the UK and
around the world, continued to provide a
steadily increasing flow of new funds. We
were pleased to add two new overseas
strategic partners during the year,

Retail sales, which embrace open-ended
funds sold through the professional
intermediary market, the private client
portfolic management business and our
investment trust clients, enjoyed a strong
year. Sales of open-ended funds through
intermediaries, which had doubled in 1999,
were a patticular highlight and increased by
over 260% in 2000. Net new business in our
QEIC/unit trust business was a healthy 14%
of funds under management in that area.

The consistent growth in sales to this
market is a good indication that the steady
development of our service to professionals,
our policy of building recognition and a
brand for the group, and in particular our
‘Rock Solid” marketing and advertising
campaign, have had a real impact.

Product development, and ensuring that
we meet our clients’ needs, is another core part
of the strategic development plan. So it was
gratifying that our strongest selling single fund
in 2000 was Edinburgh Managed Growth
DPortfolio. This was as a result of the fund being

Nothern Venture Managers Executive Directors

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

offered through a new product - the Classic
Portfolio Service — which we introduced in mid
1999 and which attracted £40 million over the
year from intermediaries with high net worth
clients. OQur award winning Edinburgh UK
Smaller Companies Fund similarly attracted
notable professional support,

Investment trust performance was good
relative to benchmark. Initiatives to support
our investment trust clients, including the
active promotion of InvestIT for Children,
one of our investment trust saving schemes,
were successful, and the discounts on the
majority of our investment trusts reduced
during the year. In 2000 we launched a new
£54 million offshore investment trust,
Edinburgh Pacific and Income Trust, and in
early 2001 Edinburgh New Tiger Trust was
successfully rolled over into the new, much
larger, Edinburgh Leveraged Income Trust.

Our UK and international institutional
business continues to grow its client base,
having won a number of mandates during
the year.

The record gross new business achieved
across Edinburgh Fund Managers core
divisions has been the result of a scrong and
able team, a clear corporate strategy and a
firm commitment to delivering good service
and investment performance to clients, With
these strengths, and our ability to adapt
rapidly to client needs, we aim to counter the
negative impact of the market falls which we
have seen at the start of this financial year.
We anticipate that, as investor sentiment is
fragile, markets will continue to be difficult
in the shorter term. However we expect an
improvement later in the year.

My congratulations and thanks to all
our staff for their contribution to the
achievements in 2000 and previous years,
and to our clients for their support.

P

CH Ross
Chairman
Edinburgh, 2 April 2001
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{ain Watt Chief Executive

The highlights of 2000 were the growth in

new funds under management and the increase
in new business revenues — the result of the
strategies adopted and implemented over the

previous four years.

Chief Executive’s

Review

4

While we adopted a number of important
new initiatives during the year, the most
important tasks of the year were converting
the projects launched in previous years into
solid, revenue-generating business and
continuing to meet our clients’ needs.

In addition to this organic growth, we
also made our first acquisition for some
years, Northern Venture Managers, which
itself achieved 67% growth in funds under
management after joining the group.

Our focus remains the development of
four key areas of business: strategic
partnerships, professional intermediaries,
private clients and the institutional market.
We believe that this gives us a good spread of
business risk berween different types of
product, customer and distributor — in the
UK and overseas.

Behind this lies continuing investment in
all aspects of the business to ensure that we
continue to offer high levels of investment
management, product development and
service to our custorners, a good working
environment to our staff and growth to our
shareholders.

Edinburgh Fund Managers Group Annual Report and Accounts 2001

Marketing and business
development

1. STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIPS

Last year [ reported to you that we had
doubled the number of strategic partnerships
and that our objective in 2000, in this area of
business, was to concentrate on increasing
sales and services to existing relationships.

Within Edinburgh Global Partnerships we
provide investment management and retail
expertise to support, primarily, the retail fund
operations of banks and life companies in the
UK and around the world. Expertise provided
for different partners includes the
management of a range of funds, including
traditional equity and bond funds as well as
derivative funds. Our partners distribute these
funds, usnally under their own brand, to a
wide range of international clients.



During the year, the flow of funds under
management from our strategic partners
increased significantly and we won further
new mandates from a number of partners,
including most recently an additional
£25 million UK equity portfolio from Bank
of Bermuda.

Towards the end of last year we were also
pleased to be selected as a strategic partner by
Armstrong Jones, one of the largest money
managers in New Zealand, and we have
created a new share class in our UK QEIC
specifically for New Zealand investors, The
current year will see us continuing to develop
the relationships which we have with our
existing partners, whilst considering potential
new opportunities.

2. RETAIL FUND SALES

The highlight of retail funds development
in 2000 was the 260% growth in gross sales
of open-ended funds to intermediaries.
Venture capital products, introduced through
the acquisition of Northern Venture
Managers, made an excellent contribution to
gross sales in the second half and good
progress was seen in demand for investment
trusts managed by the group.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW

Among other initiatives to support this
progress, we increased our marketing spend
on building the Edinburgh Fund Managers
brand, This included developing a retail
consumer campaign which followed the
themes developed in our trade advertising.
We continued our product development with
the addition of Edinburgh Global Growth
Portfolio to the successful Classic Portfolio
fund of funds service, which now has over
£120 million under management. We also
continued the development of our website
and e-commerce platform zand this financial
year have commenced a project to enhance
our ‘ISA online’ offering. The start of the
year also saw a high profile poster campaign
to increase awareness of the Edinburgh Fund
Managers brand,

Towards the end of the year we made
our funds available through an electronic
“fund supermarket’, Fidelity Funds Network,
and we are working on making our products
available through a wider range of IFA sites.

Poster for Edinburgh Fund Managers UK Smaller Companies Fund
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S REVIEW
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Open-ended funds and the
intermediary market
The group’s relationships with the
professional intermediary market continued
to develop. We added to and consolidated
our relationships with national and network
intermediaries, strengthened our relationships
with the discretionary managers and
increased the volume of business that existing
contacts do with us. A key factor in this
development has been the excellent levels of
service provided to intermediaries, which was
recognised in 2000 by a 4-star Service Award
from Financial Adviser magazine.
Professional intermediaries continue to
widen the range of our funds that they use,
The award-winning Edinburgh UK Smaller
Companies Fund continued to attract strong
interest, but this year our most popular fund
was Edinburgh Managed Growth Portfolio,
available through the Classic Portfolio
Service, which became the UK’s third best
selling fund of funds*. Other specialist funds
did well, notably Edinburgh North American
Fund.

*Source: Investment Adviser — August 2000

Professional intermediary Team
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Northern Venture Managers

In June we acquired Northern Venture
Managers, the Newcastle based venture
capital firm which is a leading player in the
rapidly growing venture capital trust ("VCT")
sector. The acquisition brought us an
established private equity brand, an
experienced management team and

£90 million under management, comprising
two VCT’s with almost 4,000 private
shareholders as well as a highly successful
investment trust, Northern Investors
Company.

As a result we have achieved not only an
exposure to this important growth area in
the retail market, but also strong investment
synergy with our successful smaller
companies team, which now has a total of
over £1 billion under management.

In the first eight months of the
relationship we have opened a new Northern
Venture Managers office in the important
Thames Valley area, launched Northern AIM
VCT and had a rights issue for Northern
Investors Company. The benefits of group
marketing are already evident. Using the



combined professional contacts and brands
of both operations Northern Venture
Managers has already increased its funds
under management to £150 million. Funds
under management are expected to build
further with January 2001 having seen
Northern Venture Managers launching a top-
up for Northern 2 VCT.

Investment trusts

Edinburgh Fund Managers is one of the top
five managers of investment trusts with
fourteen trusts representing funds under
management of £4.3 billion.

We continued our policy of joint
marketing iniviatives, participation in the
AITC’s “its’ campaign and an active share
buyback programme. Over the year
discounts were reduced on the majority of
the trusts to provide added return to
shareholders,

The outflow of funds under management
from the buyback programme was partly
mitigated by the well received launch of the
£54 million Edinburgh Pacific and Income
Trust in May. Also this year, the sharcholders
of Edinburgh New Tiger Trust voted to roll
over the £40 million trust into a new, larger
fund, Edinburgh Leveraged Income Trust,
with total assets of £83 million.

3. PRIVATE CLIENTS

Our private client business made good
progress in 2000, increasing fully
discretionary funds under management for
private individuals and charities by 10%, and
the number of client accounts by more than
15%. The growth in business continued to
come primarily from introductions from
major professional practices and personal
recommendations,

The team is dedicated to delivering
investment performance and a highly
personal level of service. Investment
petformance continued to be generally
successful, and during the year we
launched an internet-based online portfolio
information and valuation service for

our clients.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW

4. INSTITUTIONAL SALES:
UK AND INTERNATIONAL

Qur key theme for institutional business in
2000 was building relationships. Edinburgh
Institutional Client Management increased the
resources dedicated to providing support to
clients and the actuarial consulting comrunity.
We widened the range of consultants with
whom we communicate and built on the
relationships established over the past two
years. We also invested in building direct
refationships with potential new clients and
ensuring high levels of service to current clients.

At the heart of our relationships and
service lies the communication and analysis of
our investment management process and we
continue to supply some of the most
comprehensive investment performance and
risk analysis in the industry. The results of our
strengthened relationship with consultants
were seen in new mandates from the UK and
overseas. These included a £30 million
international equity mandate for FP'S Group’s
centralised pension scheme, and the wide
range of corporate client pension schemes
which invest through it, and a $100 million
US equity mandate for the Employees’
Retirement Systems of Puerto Rico Electric
Powrer Authority. We also attracted additional
funds from existing clients.

Analysis of funds under management at 31 January 2001

By geographic spiit

UK 72%

North America 12%
Europe 9%

Pacific 4%

Japan 2%

Emerging Markets 1%

Investment Trusts 50%
Institutional 33%
OEICs/Unit Trusts 10%
Private Clients 5%
Venture Capital 2%
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW

The way forward

The group enjoyed strong new business
growth in 2000.

Qur task in 2001 is fourfold:

2 to continue to meet the needs and
expectations of our clients;

9 to ensure consistency and excellence of

investment performance;

2 to maintain our strengths in new product
and service development; and

< to ensure that all our staff have a positive
and rewarding environment in which to
work.

To meet these objectives we continue to build
increasingly sophisticated quantitative and risk
control systems into our investment
management process, and to recruit and
develop fund managers of the first rank, We
will take advantage of opportunities to
develop new products and services in 2001 for
the strategic partnerships, open and closed
ended funds, private client and institutional
divisions. We will continue to invest in
building the brand and reputation of the
group.

I am pleased to be able to report that
over 75% of our staff own shares in the
company and I would like to thank them for
their efforts and commitment over the year.
We have built a strong business base for the
years to come.

o

I A Wartt
Chief Executive
Edinburgh, 2 April 2001

“1 would like to thank all our staff for their efforts
and commitment over the years. We have built a
strong business base for the years to come.”
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Funds under management

Total funds under management increased
overal] from £8.04 billion vo £8.57 billion,
an increase of 6.6%. With most of the major
market indices showing only small increases,
and, in some cases falls, this positive
outcome was as a direct result of new

business wins.

Market levels

The major markets of the UK and the US rose
by around 1.8% and 8.7% respectively during
the year. In the more specialist markets the UK
small companies sector rose by 5.6%, the
Pacific markets were unchanged, Japan fell by
22.3% and the FTSE technology index, the
Techmark, fell by 28%. The new business
wing secured during the year were therefore
key to ensuring that funds under management
increased.

New business

New business increased by 70%. This was
due to the following factors:

9 increased sales to our strategic partners;
o increased sales through intermediaries;

© new capital raised by Northern Venture
Managers Limirted which was acquired
during the year;

® UK and international institutional
business wins; and

© the launch of new split capital investment
companies, Edinburgh Pacific and
Income Trust and Edinburgh Leveraged
Income Trust (the rollover vehicle for
Edinburgh New Tiger Trust) helped to
offset the losses from investment trust
share buybacks.

Operating and
Financial Review

Financial summary

Turnover

Management fee income is directly related to
funds under management. Turnover increased
during the year by 21%, from £30.0 million
to £36.3 million despite a year where market
levels have been particularly volatile. Northern
Venture Managers turnover for the eight
months since acquisition was £2.2 million,
accounting for one third of this increase,

Fee levels earned on specialist funds are
generally higher than mainstream funds
which means that funds under management
in these areas contribute a disproportionate
amount to income earned. The acquisition of
Northern Venture Managers helped to
increase our revenues as a percentage of
funds under management from 0.39% to
0.42%. In addition, performance fees have
also contributed to the increased revenues.

Administration costs
Costs rose by 24% over the previous year
from £19.9 million to £24.7 million. This
rise can be attributed to three key factors.
Firstly, the costs for the eight months of the
venture capital business of £1.7 million
accounted for one third of the increase.
Secondly, we increased our marketing spend
on the Edinburgh Fund Managers brand to
increase awareness and encourage investors
to invest with us, supporting our efforts in
the professional intermediary market. Finally,
outperformance by both our fund
management teams and sales teams resulted
in specific awards being made for achieving
predetermined performance criteria.
Overall, costs as a percentage of funds
under management have increased from
0.27% to 0.29% but still remain below the
average of our peer group.
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Mike Balfour Executive Director

The Year 2000 saw
growth in funds
under management,
revenues and profits.



OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Gaodwill amortisation

Goodwill arose on the acquisition of
Northern Venture Managers. This
represented the difference berween the
purchase price and the tangible assets
acquired and is written off over twenty years.

Operating profit

Operating profit {excluding goodwill and
exceptionals) rose by 16% over the past year
from £10.0 million o £11.6 million.

Other income
During the year we realised gains of
£0.5 million on our investment portfolio.

Interest payable

The interest payable was higher than last
year, This was as a direct result of the
acquisition of Northern Venture Managers
and the acquisition of a property in Dundee,
which was purchased to accommodate our
expanded back office and investment
administration teams. The interest cost also
included interest on the loan notes issued on
the acquisition of Northern Venture
Managers and the amortisation of the
discount on the deferred consideration.

Pre-tax profit

Pre-tax profit {excluding goodwill and
exceptionals) rose by 15% from £10.8 million
in the year to 31 January 2000, to

£12.5 million.

Market returns year to 31 January 2001

Taxation

The realised gains on investments during the
year did not give rise to capital gains tax and,
together with an adjustment for over
provision in prior years, gave an effective tax
rate of 29.8%, down from last year’s 29.9%.

Earnings per share
Earnings per share {excluding goodwill and
exceptionals) increased by 14% from 27.5p
to 31.4p. Earnings per share (including
goodwill and exceptionals) were down 1%
from 30.8p to 30.5p.

The proposed final dividend of 17p
makes a total dividend payout of 25p for the
year, which is unchanged from last year.

Capital and reserves

Our net cash balances totalled £9.2 million
as at 31 January 2001 compared with

£5.2 million the previous year. There were
three main reasons for this increase; firstly,
the effect of the short term timing
differences on our OEIC dealing and
settlements positions which were financed
out of cash resources, secondly, the disposal
of part of the investment portfolio and
thirdly, the retained profits of the year. The
acquisition of Northern Venture Managers
was financed by a combination of shares
and loan notes issued in exchange for the
shares and a placing in the market. The
acquisition of property in Dundee was
financed by bank borrowings.

Percentage movement

Region {Sterling adjusted)
UK +1.8
UK Smaller Companies +5.6
uUs +8.7
Europe (ex UK) +11.2
Japan -22.3
Pacific (ex Japan) -0.4
Emerging Markets -14.4
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Risk management and financial
instruments

The key business risk which Edinburgh Fund
Managers faces is the jevel of stock markets
and their impact on our clients portfolios.
Fund management income is directly related
to the assets managed. Where client
portfolios are invested overseas there is also
the currency risk associated with the country
in which the assets are invested.

FRS 13, Derivatives and Other Financial
Instruments, requires disclosure of financial
instruments which are held by or issued by
the group. The financial instruments which
require disclosure include fixed asset
investments, cash and the bank overdraft.

Detailed information relating to the risk
profile of these financial instruments is
shown in note 23 to the financial statements,

As part of our OEIC/unit trust activity
we hold temporary positions which are at
risk to market and currency movements. In
order to manage the risk involved financial
instruments have been used. There were no
open derivatives positions at the year end.

The year ahead

We are focused on producing good
investment performance and service levels for
all our clients. We wish to build on the
significant progress the company has made
over the last two years and will continue to
focus on growing our four key business areas
{strategic partnerships, professional
intermediaries, private clients and the
institutional market).

At present we do not anticipate a
material rise in operating costs, although
investment for the future growth of the
company may lead to some cost increases,
Key to increasing earnings per share, our
main financial objective, will be the average
level of stock markets during the year and
increasing funds under management from
new and existing clients.

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Stock markets have fallen by over 10%
so far this calendar year. This and their
volatility over the last twelve months could
lead 1o a slowdown in new business
development in the shorter term as investor
sentiment is fragile. Despite shorter term
concerns we believe, with further interest rate
cuts to come, and equities at attractive
valuation levels, that equity markets will
make decent progress throughout the year.

M W Balfour
Executive Director
Edinburgh, 2 April 2001

We wish to build on the significant progress the
company has made over the last two years.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Registered office
Donaldson House

97 Haymarket Terrace
Edinburgh EH12 5HD
Telephone: 0131-313 1000
Facsimile: 0131-313 6300
Registered no: SC 157875
Website: www.edfd.com

C H Ross Non-Executive Chairman

Registrars ) Colin Ross CA, {60), is chairman of
Computershare Services plc the nominations committee and a
Owen House member of the audit committee and
8 Bankhead Crossway North the remuneration committee. He is
Edinburgh EH11 4BR also non-executive chairman of
Telephone: 0870 702 0010 Edinburgh Oil & Gas.

Date of appointment:

Website: www.cshare.co.uk 8 February 1972

Bankers

Bank of Scotland
The Mound
Edinburgh EH1 1YZ

Auditors

KPMG Audit Plc
Saltire Court

20 Castle Terrace
Edinburgh EH1 2EG

Joint stockbrokers
WestLB Panmure Ltd
New Broad Street House
35 New Broad Street
London EC2M 15Q

HSBC Investment Bank plc
Thames Exchange

10 Queens Street Place
‘London EC4R 1BL
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Sir Angus Grossart
Non-Executive Deputy Chairman

Sir Angus Grossart CBE, LLD, FRSE, DL,

(63), is a member of the nominations
committee and chairman of the audit
committee and the remuneration
committee. He is also chairman and
managing director of Noble Grossart,

chairman of The Scottish Investment Trust
and Edinburgh US Tracker Trust and vice-
chairman of The Royal Bank of Scotland.

Date of appointment: 13 September 1983

J W Blair Non-Executive Director
Johnnie Blair BA, LLB, WS, (64),

is a member of the audit committee
and the nominations committee, He
is senior partner of an Edinburgh
legal firm.

Date of appointment;

30 December 1988*

Board of Directors

1 AWatt Chief Executive

Tain Watt, (56), is an associate of
the Institute of Bankers in Scotland
and a non-executive director of
Edinburgh Dragon Trust.

Date of appointment:

24 February 1986*

A D M MacDonald
Senior independent
Non-Executive Director

Donald MacDonald CBE, MA, LLB, CA,
(61), is a member of the audit committee

and the remuneration committee. He is
also chairman of Edinburgh Inca Trust,
Edinburgh Small Companies Trust and
joint managing director of MacDonald
Orr. He is also chairman of the Scottish
Chamber Orchestra.

Date of appointment: 21 September 1995

M W Balfour Executive Director
Mike Balfour CA, (40),

is managing director and chief
investment officer of Edinburgh
Fund Managers plc.

Date of appointment:

22 September 1998

A F MacDonald Non-Executive Director
Angus MacDonald, (38},

is a member of the nominations
committee and the remuneration
committee. He is also a non~
executive director of Noble Group
and chairman of eFinancialNews.
Date of appointment:

25 October 1999

* Date of appeintment to Edinburgh Fund Managers plc which was the holding company prior to the implementation of the scheme of arrangement effected on 1 August 1995.
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Directors’ Report

The directors have pleasure in presenting their report
together with the audited financial statements for the

year ended 31 January 2001.

Business of the group

The principal activity of the group is investment
management, which includes the management of
Investment trusts, unit trusts and OEICs, pension
funds, private client funds and other discretionary
portfolios.

Review of activities

A review of the business and likely future
developments of the group are given in the
chairman’s statement, cthe chief executive’s review
and the operating and financial review on pages 2
to 11.

Dividends

The directors recommend that a final dividend
of 17p (2000-17p) per share be paid on
21 May 2001 to holders of ordinary shares on the
register on 27 April 2001 making a total payment
of 25p (2000-25p) per share for the year.

The group’s profit and loss account surplus for

the year of £1,559,000 will be transferred to reserves.

Holder % of share

capital held
Hermes Investment Management (on behalf of clients) 24.2
Prudential 5.8
Legal & General Investment Management (on behalf of clients) 3.9
NFU Mutual Insurance Society 3.1

14
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Directors

The board comprises two executive directors and
five non-executive directors. Their interests in the
company’s shares are listed on page 18.

In accordance with the articles of association,
] W Blair and Sir Angus Grossart retire from the
beard at the annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Biographical details of directors standing for
re-election are given on pages 12 and 13.

Going concern

After making enquiries, the directors have a
reasonable expectation that the group has
adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future. For this
reason, they continue to adopt the going concern
basis in preparing the accounts.

Substantial share interests

At 2 April 2001 the interests as noted in the rable
opposite in the ordinary share capital had been
notified to the company.

Payment policy
It is the group’s payment policy to ensure
settlement of all suppliers’ invoices in accordance
with their stated terms. In certain circumstances,
settlement terms are agreed prior to business
taking place.

The amount owed to trade creditors at
31 January 2001 represented 34 days’ average
purchases.



Environment

The group encourages efficiency and avoidance of
waste including recycling of materials and
reduction of paper by the use of computer systems.
The group maintains a high standard health and
safety policy.

Charitable donations

During the year the group made charitable
donations of £12,000.

Auditors

Resolutions will be proposed ar the annual general
meeting to re-appoint KPMG Audit Plc as auditors
of the company and to authorise the directors to
fix their remuneration.

Annual general meeting

At the annual general meeting to be held on

18 May 2001, the following three resolutions will

be proposed:

2 ordinary resolution 7 will be proposed to
confer an authority on the directors, in
substitution for any existing authority, to allot
unissued ordinary shares up to 2 maximum
nominal amount of £474,000 (being 33.3% of
the current issued ordinary share capital and in
line with institutional guidelines) in accordance
with section 80 of the Companies Act 1985.
The authority conferred by this resolution will
expire on 17 May 2006.

2 special resolution 8 will be proposed to give
the directors power to allot 2 maximum of
£474,000 of unissued ordinary share capital
for cash without first being required to offer
such shares to existing shareholders provided
that such power shall be limited to the
allotment of (i) ordinary shares issued pursuant
to a rights issue and (i} £71,157 of otdinary
share capital representing 5% of the company’s
issued share capital at the date of this report.
The power conferred by this resolution will
expire on 17 May 2006.

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The directors consider that the authority
and power proposed to be granted by
resolutions 7 and § are necessary to retain
flexibility, although they do not have any
intention of exercising such authority and
power at the present time,

2 special resolution 9 will be proposed to
authorise the company to make market
purchases of its own shares. The maximum
aggregate number of shares which may be
purchased pursuant to the authority shall be
10% of the issued share capital of the
company as at the date of the passing of the
resolution (approximately 2.846 million
shares), The minimum price which may be
paid for a share shall be 5p (exclusive of
expenses). The maximum price for a share
(again exclusive of expenses) shall be an
amount equal to 105% of the average of the
middle market quotations for the company’s
shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of purchase. As at
2 April 2001, the company had 2,702,975
options to subscribe for shares ourstanding
{representing 9.50% of the issued share capital
of the company as at 2 April 2001). If the
outstanding amount of the existing buyback
authority conferred at the 2000 AGM is
utilised in full prior to the 2001 AGM and the
buyback authority is renewed at the 2001
AGM and is then utilised in full, the options
outstanding at 2 April 2001 would represent
11.8% of the issued share capital of the
company.

This authority, if conferred, will only be
exercised if to do so would result in an increase
in earnings per share and is in the best interests
of shareholders generally.

By order of the board . .
Catherine C ] Miller Mﬂ*%’ Har
Secretary

Edinburgh, 2 April 2001
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Remuneration Report

Remuneration policy

The specific remuneration package for each of the
executive directors, including those of subsidiary
undertakings, (the ‘executives’) is determined by
the remuneration committee (the ‘committee’) on
behalf of the board.

The board is committed to pursuing a strategy
for continued improvement in the financial
performance of the company and recognises the
importance of establishing an appropriate
remuneration package to attract, retain and
motivate high calibre people to achieve this
objective. The policy is to align the interests of the
company’s employees more closely with those of
the company’s shareholders by incentive payments
which recognise shareholder value and by
encouraging employees to acquire and retain an
equity stake in the company. The remuneration of
non-executive directors is determined by the board
within the limits set by the company’s articles of
association.

Directors’ service contracts
The notice period for the executive directors’
service agreements does not exceed rwelve months.
There are no service contracts for non-
executive directors, Their lerters of appointment
confirm the terms and conditions of their
appointment. Their re-election is in accordance
with the rotation provisions set out in the articles

of association.

Salaries

The salaries of executives are determined after a
review of their performance. It is the aim of the
board to reward executives competitively and on
the broad principle that their remuneration should
be based around the median remuneration paid to
those with similar responsibilities in fund
management companies in Scotiand. A company
car or cash equivalent and private medical benefits
are provided.

Executive share options
Under the unapproved executive share option

Edinburgh Fund Managers Group Annual Report and Accounts 2001

scheme, ordinary options or super options may be
granted over unissued shares on the
recommendation of the committee.

Ordinary options are exercisable prior to the
fourth, fifth and sixth anniversaries of the date of
grant in relation to 25%, 50% and 75%
respectively of the number originally granted, but
only if the growth in earnings per share of the
company exceeds the percentage increase in the
retail price index over 3 consecutive years by at
least 3% per annum compounded annually.
Ordinary options granted, in aggregate with all
other executive options granted in the previous
10 years, may not exceed 4 times televant
earnings.

Super options may be granted, in aggregate
with all other executive options granted in the
previous 10 years, up to a maximum of 8 times
relevant earnings. Only one half of the super
options can be exercised prior to the sixth
anniversary of the date of grant, subject to a
growth in the company’s earnings per share over
5 consecutive years being at least equivalent to
that of the top quartile of companies within the
FTSE 100 Index.

Executive options are not granted at a
discount to the market value,

Bonuses

For the year ended 31 January 2001, bonuses were
awarded, art the discretion of the board, to certain
executives in recognition of particular
achievements during the year.

Executives with objectively measurable
performance can earn a pre-determined minimum
bonus if a challenging performance target is met.
There is also 2 discretionary bonus scheme which
will, generally speaking, be used only for those
executives who do not participate in the
performance-related schemes or to those who had
not achieved their targets but merited a bonus for
some other reason. All bonuses are subject to
upper limits.

Executives may elect to take all or part of
their bonus, after deduction of tax, in shares of the



Directors’ emoluments*

REMUNERATION REPORT

Total emoluments
Basic salary p?':li‘iltlss::rde Fees Benefits 23:)(: e et
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Executive
I A Wart 230 81 — 1 322 303
M W Balfour 173 4 — 12 189 243
Non-executive
J W Blair — — 15 — 15 12
Sir Angus Grossart —_ — 17 - 17 15
A D M MacDonald — — 15 — i5 i2
A F MacDonald
{appointed 25 October 1999) — — 15 — 15 3
CH Ross - — 35 - 35 33
Total 2001 403 85 97 23 608 621
Total 2000 368 156 75 22 621

* The rotal emoluments of, and gains made on exercise of options by, the highest paid director totalled £384,000.

company whereby the company will buy the
shares in the market and deposit them with an
employees’ benefit trust. If the shares are held for a
minimum of three years in the employees’ benefit
trust, the executive will receive an enhancement of
up to 60% of the number of shares held.

Pension scheme

The executives are entitled to be members of the
group pension scheme which covers all eligible
employees. The scheme is non-contributory and
the normal retirement age is sixty which enables
members to achieve the maximum pension benefir
of two thirds of final pensionable salary at normal
retirement age after forty years of service. The
rules of the scheme allow for both early and [ate
retirement with pension benefits being paid based
on final pensionable salary adjusted to reflect early
or late payments respectively. Pension payments
will be increased in line with inflation up to 5%
per annum, subject to a minimum increase of 3%
in each year. For death before retirement a capital
sum of four times pensionable salary at the time of
death is payable together with a spouse’s or

dependent children’s pension of two thirds of the
expected pension at the normal retirement age. In
the case of death in retirement, a spouse’s ot
dependent children’s pension of 50% of the
member’s pension is payable. In the event of death
within five years of retirement, an additional lump
sum is payable amounting to the sum of the
pension which would have been paid over the
balance of the five years.

Directors’ pensions

The accrued annual entitlement of Mr I A Watt,
who was fifry-five ar 31 January 2001, amounts to
£138,000 (2000-£122,000). This change reflects
the salary increase he received during the period,
The additional pension earned in excess of
inflation (at the rate of 2.0%) during the year
amounted to £14,000. The accrued annual
entitlement of Mr M W Balfour, who was

forty at 31 January 2001, amounts to £40,000
(2000-£34,000). This change reflects the salary
increase he received during the period, The
additional pension earned in excess of inflation
amounted to £5,000.

£dinburgh Fund Managers Group Annual Report and Accounts 2001
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REMUNERATION REPORT

Directors’ interests in the company at 31 January

2001 2000
Share options Share options
Ordinary Savings- Ordinary Savings-
shares Executive related ) shares Executive related
J W Blair 9,000 — — 9,000 — —_
C H Ross 495,000 — —_ 495,000 — —
[ A Wau 173,947 255,000 5,340 139,680 260,100 5,340
M W Balfour 41,140 244,000 - 36,149 224,000 —
The savings-related share options were granted on M W Balfour elected to take 3,634 shares. Under
4 May 1999 at 316p. These options can be the terms of the bonus scheme, they will be entitled
exercised between 1 June 2004 and 1 December to receive an additional 4,672 and 2,180 shares
2004, In May 20001 A Watt and M W Balfour respectively in May 2003, I A Watt will also receive
received bonuses in respect of the previous year, an additional 2,140 shares in May 2002 arising
I A Watt elected to take 7,788 shares and from a previous year’s election.
Directors’ share options
Date from
Options  Options Exercise which Expiry
31.1.00 granted  exerdsed  31.1.01 price  exercsable  date
| A Watt
Executive share options 20,100 — 20,100 — 366.0p 22696 21.6.03
5,000 — 5,000 —  604.0p 27.597 26.5.04
10,000 — —_ 10,000 726.0p 6.10.98 5.10.05
25,000 — — 25,000m 592.5p 1.10.99 30.9.06
100,000 — — 100,000® 532.5p 25.3.03 253.05
100,000 — —  100,000® 407.5p 4.5.04 4.5.06
— 20,000 — 20,0009 661.0p 31.3.05 31.3.07
Total 260,100 20,000 25,100 255,000
M W Balfour
Executive share options 30,000 — — 30,000 308.0p 22695 21.6.02
15,000 — — 15,000 366.0p 22696 21.6.03
15,000 — — 15000 604.0p 27.5.97 26.5.04
10,000 — — 10,0000 726.0p 6.1098 5.10.05
10,000 — — 10,000 592.5p 1.10.99 30.9.06
44,000 — —  44,000® 532.5p 25.3.01 253.05
100,000 — — 100,000® 407.5p 4.5.04 4.5.06
— 20,000 —  20,000® 661.0p 24.3.05 24.3.07
Total 224,000 20,000 — 244000

During the year, Mr Warr exercised options as above. The middle market price of the ordinary shares at the date of exercise was 661p.
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Directors’ interests

The names of the directors and their holdings in
the company’s shares are shown in the table
opposite. All interests are beneficially held. Other
than those disclosed opposite, no director had any
interests in the share capital of any group
company. The company has not been notified of
any changes in directors’ holdings between

31 January 2001 and 2 April 2001.

Directors’ share options

No options lapsed during the year. The market
price of the shares at 31 January 2001 was 704p
and the range during the year was 531p to 713p.

¥ These options are exercisable only if, over any
three consecutive financial years of the company
commencing on the first day of any financial
year of the company the end of which falls after
the date of grant of the options, the percentage
increase in the earnings per share exceeds the
percentage increase in the retail price index by at
least 2% over the same period.

@ These are ordinary options which are exercisable
prior to the fourth, fifth and sixth anniversaries
of the date of grant in relation to 25%, 50%
and 75% respectively of the number originally
granted, but only if the growth in earnings per
share of the company exceeds the percentage
increase in the retail price index over
3 consecutive years by at least 3% per annum
compounded annually.

3 Only one half of these super options can be
exercised prior to the sixth anniversary of the
date of grant, subject to a growth in the
company’s earnings per share over 5 consecutive
years being at least equivalent to that of the top
quartile of companies within the FISE 100
Index.

In certain circumstances options may be exercised
early without the performance criteria being
achieved. These include takeover, death, retirement
and redundancy.

REMUNERATION REPORT

Edinburgh Fund Managers Group Annual Report and Accounts 2007

19



Corporate Governance

The company is committed to high standards of
corporate governance throughout the group. The
board is accountable to the company’s
shareholders for good governance and this
statement describes how the principles identified in
the combined code (appended to the listing rules
of the Financial Services Authority) {the ‘code’} are
applied by the company.

In addition, the board confirms that the
company has complied throughout the accounting
period with the provisions set out in section 1 of
the code.

Directors

The board consists of a non-executive chairman,
four other non-executive directors and two
executive directors. All of the non-executive
directors are considered by the board to be
independent of management and free of any
relationship which could materially interfere with
the exercise of their independent judgement.

Biographies of the board members appear on
pages 12 and 13 of this report. These indicate the
high level and range of business and financial
experience which enables the board to provide
clear and effective leadership and proper
stewardship of the company.

The board meets at least four times each year
and more frequently when business needs require.
The board has a schedule of matters reserved to it
for decision and the requirement for board
approval on these matters is communicated widely
throughout the senior management of the group.
This includes matters such as material capital
commitments, commencing or settling major
litigation, business acquisitions and disposals and
appointments to subsidiary company boards.

There is an agreed procedure for directors to
take independent professional advice if necessary at
the company’s expense. This is in addition to the
access which every director has to the advice and
services of the company secretary, The secretary is
charged by the board with ensuring that board
procedures are followed and complied with.
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Whenever a new director is appointed to the
board, he or she is provided with access to an
appropriate, external training course in respect of
the role and duties of public company directors
unless he or she has previous experience as a
director of a public company and considers that
further training is unnecessary.

The differing roles of chairman and chief
executive are acknowledged by the board. The key
functions of the chairman are to conduct board
meetings and meetings of sharcholders and to
ensure that all directors are properly briefed in
order to take a full and constructive part in board
discussions. The chief executive is required to
develop and lead business strategies and processes
as determined by the board to enable the group’s
business to meet the requirements of its
shareholders. The senior independent non-
executive director is Mr A D M MacDonald and
concerns relating to the executive management of
the company or the performance of the other non-
executive directors can be raised with him.

To enable the board to function effectively
and allow directors to discharge their
responsibilities, full and rimely access is given to
all relevant information.

Appointments to the board are considered by
the nominations committee. The members and
principal terms of reference of the committee
(along with the same information for the audit
and remuneration committees) are set out on
page 22. The recommendations of the
nominations committee are ultimately made to the
board, which will consider them before any
appointment is made.

Any director appointed during the year is
required, under the provisions of the company’s
articles of association, to retire and seek election
by shareholders at the next annual general
meeting. The articles also require that one third of
the non-executive directors retire by rotation each
year and seek re-election at the annual general
meeting and require that every director submits
himself for re-election at least every three years.



Directors’ remuneration
Full details of directors’ remuneration and a
statement of the group’s remuneration policy are
set out in the remuneration report appearing on
pages 16 to 19. The members of the remuneration
committee and the principal terms of reference of
the comimittee appear on page 22. The chief
executive attends meetings of the committee to
discuss the performance of the other executive
directors {including those of subsidiary companies)
and make proposals as necessary, but is not
present when his own position is being discussed.
Each executive director abstains from any
discussion or voting at board meetings on
remuneration committee recommencdations where
the recommendations have a direct bearing on his
own remuneration package. The details of each
executive director’s individual package are fixed by
the committee in line with the policy adopted by
the board.

Relations with shareholders

The company places a great deal of importance on
communication with its shareholders. The report
and accounts are widely distributed to other
parties who have an interest in the group’s
performance.

There is regular dialogue with individual
institutional sharcholders as well as general
presentations after the interim and annual results.
All shareholders have the opportunity to put
questions to the company’s annual general
meeting,

Accountability and audit
The respective responsibilities of the directors and
the auditors in connection with the financial
statements appeat on pages 23 and 24, The
statement of the directors on going concern
appears on page 14.

The board has overall responsibility for
ensuring that there is in place a system of internal

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

control for the group. Such a system is designed to
provide reassurance with regard to the
safeguarding of assets, the maintenance of proper
accounting records and the reliability of financial
information used within the business or for
publication. The system also extends to
operational and corporate controls and risk
management. Such a system is designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

A manpagement committee, the compliance
and risk committee, has the responsibility for
identifying, evaluating and managing the
company’s significant risks. The audit committee
receives reports from the compliance and risk
committee setting out key business risks and
considers possible financial, operational and
compliance controls. The audit committee also
receives regular reports from the internal audit
function, external auditors and management
which include recommendations for improvement.
The audit committee’s role in this area is confined
to a high level review of the arrangements for
internal control. The board’s agenda includes a
regular item for consideration of risk and control
and receives reports thereon from the audit
committee, At its March 2001 meeting, the board
carried out the annual assessment of the
effectiveness of the group’s system of internal
control for the year to 31 January 2001.

The audit committee met three times during
the year and considered reports from the internal
and external auditors, as well as from
management. These meetings were attended by
senior members of staff and the company’s
external auditors. The reports from the internal
audit function covered specific matters arising
during the year in addition to the reviews
identified as part of the annual programme
mentioned above.
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The audit committee keeps the scope and
effectiveness of both the internal audit function
and the external audit under review. The
independence and objectivity of the external
auditors is also considered on a regular basis, with
particular regard to the level of non-audit fees.
The split between audit and non-audit fees for the
year under review appears on page 32. The non-
audit fees were paid in respect of acquisitions, tax
advice, IMRO audit reviews, strategy reviews, IT
security and general accounting matters and are
considered by the committee not to affect
independence or objectivity.

Board committees
Membership of the board committees and a
summary of their terms of reference are set out

below:
Audit Nominations Remuneration
committee committee committee
To assist the board in discharging To consider and recommend  To monitor, review and
its duties and responsibilities for to the board the appointment  recommend the group’s
financial reporting, corporate of directors. remuneration policy {as set out

governance, internal control and
appointment and remuneration
of the independent auditors.

on page 16). To determine, on
behalf of the board, the
remuneration packages of the
executives of the group.

Sir Angus Grossarc (Chairman) C H Ross (Chatrmarn)

Sir Angus Grossart (Chairman)

J W Blair J W Blair A D M MacDonald
A D M MacDonald Sir Angus Grossart A F MacDonald
CH Ross A F MacDonald CH Ross
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

Company law requires the directors to prepare
financial statements for each financial year which
give a true and fair view of the stare of affairs of
the company and of the revenue of the company
for that period. In preparing those financial
statements, the directors ate required to:

2 select suitable accounting policies and then
apply them consistently;

2 make judgements and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent;

2 state whether applicable accounting standards
have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements; and

o prepare the financial statements on the going
concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the company will continue in
business.

The directors confirm that they comply with all
the above requirements. The directors are
responsible for keeping proper accounting records
which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the company and to
enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 1985. They have
a general responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of
the company and to prevent and to detect fraud
and other irregularities.
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REPORT OF THE AUDITORS

Auditors’ report to the members of
Edinburgh Fund Managers Group plc
We have audited the financial statements on
pages 25 to 45,

Respective responsibilities of
directors and auditors

The directors are responsible for preparing
the annual report. As described on page 23,
this includes responsibility for preparing the
financial statements in accordance with
applicable United Kingdom law and
accounting standards. Our responsibilities as
independent auditors are established in the
United Kingdom by statute, the Auditing
Practices Board, the listing rules of the
Financial Services Authority, and by our
profession’s ethical guidance.

‘We report to you our opinions as to
whether the financial statements give a true
and fair view and are properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act, We also
report to you if, in our opinion, the directors’
report is not consistent with the financial
statements, if the company has not kept
proper accounting records, if we have not
received all the information and explanations
we require for our audit, or if information
specified by law or the listing rules regarding
directors’ remuneration and transactions
with the company is not disclosed.

We review whether the statement on
pages 20 to 22 reflects the company’s
compliance with the seven provisions of the
combined code specified for our review by
the Financial Services Authority and we
report if it does not. We are not required to
consider whether the board’s statements on
internal control cover all risks and controls,
ot form an opinion on the effectiveness of
the group’s corporate governance procedures
or its risk and control procedures.

We read other information contained in
the annual report, including the corporate
governance statement and consider whether
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it is consistent with the audited financial
statements, We consider the implications for
our report if we become aware of any
apparent misstatements or material
inconsistencies with the financial statements.

Basis of audit opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with
auditing standards issued by the Auditing
Practices Board. An audit includes
examination, on a test basis, of evidence
relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. It also includes an
assessment of the significant estimates and
judgements made by the directors in the
preparation of the financial statements, and of
whether the accounting policies are
approptiate to the group’s circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.
We planned and performed our audit so
as to obtain all the information and
explanations which we considered necessary
in order to provide us with sufficient
evidence to give reasonable assurance that
the financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or other irregularity or error. In
forming our opinion we also evaluated the
overall adequacy of the presentation of
information in the financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion the financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company and the group as at 31 January
2001 and of the profit of the group for the
year then ended and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Compa es
Act 1985,

C

KPMG Audit Plc
Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditor

Saltire Court
Edinburgh, 2 April 2001



CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

for the year ended 31 January 2001

Notes 2001 2000
£000 £000 £000 £000
TURNOVER 2
— continuing operations 34,064 29,935
— acquisitions 2,276 —
36,340 29,935
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
— administration 3 24,741 19,907
— amortisation of goodwill 246 —
24,987 19,907
OPERATING PROFIT
— continuing operations 11,023 10,028
- acquisitions 330 —
11,353 10,028
Gain on disposals of investments 5 498 528
Other income — ordinary é 793 538
— exceptional 6 — 1,281
793 1,817
12,644 12,373
Interest payable 7 434 269
PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
BEFORE TAXATION 12,210 12,104
Taxation 8 3,637 3,616
PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
AFTER TAXATION 8,573 8,488
DIVIDENDS 9 7,014 6,848
Retained profit for the year 20 1,559 1,640
EARNINGS PER SHARE
{excluding goodwill and exceptional items) 10 314p 27.5p
EARNINGS PER SHARE
(including goodwill and exceptional items) 10 30.5p 30.8p
FULLY DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 10 30.2p 30.7p
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CONSOQOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

at 31 January 2001

26

FEXED ASSETS

Intangible assets - goodwill
Tangible assets
Investments

Own shares — at cost

CURRENT ASSETS

Stock of shares and units
Debtors

Cash and deposits

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING
DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

Bank overdraft

Taxation and social security
Other creditors

Proposed final dividend

NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS PALLING
DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR

CAPITAI, AND RESERVES
Called up share capital
Reserves

EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

Notes

11
12
13
14

16

17

18

19
20

£000

803
11,116
13,255

25,174

4,068
2,880
13,745
4,762

25,455

Approved by the board on 2 April 2001 and signegd on its behalf by:

C H ROSS, Chairman

£000

7,142
2,783
9,219
2,091

21,235

(281)

20,954

4,279

16,675

1,423
15,252

16,675

SIR ANGUS GROSSART, Depury Chairman /4 A va 71 oA
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£000

1,022
9,924
6,495

17,441

1,287
2,961
7,789
4,646

16,683

£000

614
8,922
2,128

11,664

758

12,422

12,422

1,392
11,030

12,422




FIXED ASSETS
Investments

Subsidiary undertakings
Own shares - at cost

CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors falling due after
more than one year

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING

DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
Bank overdraft

Other creditors
Proposed final dividend

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING
DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital
Reserves

EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS

Approved by the board on 2 April 2001 and si

C H ROSS, Chairman

SIR ANGUS GROSSART, Deputy Chairman

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

Notes 2001

£000 £000
13 33
15 95,181
14 2,091
97,305

16 11,547

4,068

i7 11,916

4,762

20,746

(9,199}
88,106
18 4,279
83,827
19 1,423
20 82,404
83,827
ed on its behalf by:
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at 31 January 2001

2000

£000 £00¢

86

85,606

2,128

87,820
10,030
1,287
10,021
4,646
15,954

(5,924}

81,896

81,896

1,392

80,504

81,896
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STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES

for the year ended 31 January 2001

2001 2000

£000 £000
Profit fOr the Year .o ree st iressr s s esaas s reesate s s b sas s ssaeesasassbssreensnnsebsssssann 8,573 8,488
Movement in revaluation of investments............ e T rE TSR g Rt e (689) 3,123
Total recognised gains and losses relatinig 10 the YEAr c..ccrecinvereremstststnnmissmsssssssiassmersras 7,884 11,611
NOTE OF HISTORICAL COST PROFITS AND LOSSES
for the year ended 31 January 2001
2001 2000
£000 £000
Reported profit on ordinary activities before taxation ..........eoseeeeceermsnesescesnsrssseesseseans 12,210 12,104
Realisation of investment revaluation 105ses of Prior Years ....ovvvenrerissisisesseressesissearsneses {9} {1,944
Historical cost profit for the year before taXation v s 12,201 10,160
Historical cost profit/(loss) for the year after taxation and dividends ...........ccceereerrrsverineas 1,550 {304)
RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT IN SHAREHOLDERS’' FUNDS
for the year ended 31 January 2001
2001 2000
Consclidated Company Consolidated Company
£000 £000 £000 £000
Profit fOr the YEar ...euevvivneersreescssrreerinssrssisisssssrsessnnsssssssanas 8,573 5,615 8,488 8,217
DIVEIAEnds cuvvvervnrrnisiscsiinnnrnirerssssiannenesrrrarssssressssnrestesassenns 7,014 7,014 6,848 6,848
Retained profit/(loss) for the year .......covevecierrererscsreriinnees 1,559 {1,399) 1,640 1,369
Other recognised gains and LOSSES .....vereecminnrrrerrnsessnserrensns (689) (53} 3,123 —
ISSUE OF SRATES .. veerrcrerinrie et sees e s st g ssssnanas 3,383 3,383 44 44
Net addition to shareholders’ funds ..coevveevverreesrnereernisssennes 4,253 1,931 4,807 1,413
Shareholders’ funds at 31 January 2000 .......covercrinvvnreerarees 12,422 81,896 7,615 80,483
Sharcholders’ funds at 31 January 2001 ......coeeeereremmrerrvsseneas 16,675 83,827 12,422 81,896
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 January 2001

2001 2000

Notes £Q00 £000

Cash inflow from Operating aCtiVIties co.evirveivseesesserernsrnieessrerersrsssssssensessnesenssessens (a) 15,695 6,076
Returns on investments and servicing of finance ....eceveiriimeesnmssrecesnise {b) 357 240
TAKATION werrerventiseeressrisniinesesserebsrissisists oo sasassnessesesnnasssreshensssennsansssesssnessasaesnereshbss (3,894} {2,510)
Capiral expenditure and financial INVESTMENT .eccrvorveeereernrreseinisieresnnsrioenssessnsss {c) (1,913} (2,428)
Acquisitions and diSPOSALS ......vvieieeieenireere i s e s s nsae s e snereses (d) {548) —_
Equity dividends paic .....coceoviiniiiniireriiensisiessnnesessssesnsstsnesesessesessssssnssesassasss (6,898) (6,909)
Cash inflow/(outflow) before fiNancing .......vuuvcereresuvrsnsrsseseremssssssessssssstassasseressns 2,799 (5,531)
FINAMNCITIE vvicrveniirnecrrierersesnessenismsesssessussesnensssesssssnrssrassssassessssnrabesstasesssvansesssasnnsren (e} 1,180 44
Increasef{decrease) in cash in the Period ... vciiinie e e {f) 3,979 (35,487)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(a) Reconciliation of operating profit to operating cash flows

OPErating PIOLIT cooeeeisseecreeessieerinrieseseseerrinesessssssrrr e stasasssssrrasesssuasesasraasasssessastemsarassuarsrn 11,353 10,028
Depreciation charge ... s e 393 434
Amortisation of GOOAWILL ......veccieiiieeesiiiensis s sesssrieeres s istassesbesssssesbares e ss s ansasnesessss 246 —
Gain on disposal of fixed ASSELS ..ccivevviiniiniiiiie i e snssns b ensansrantas {12} €3]
Other INCOME = OFBINATY coereriiicrirei e s e s s et sosbn s ase s e sassbasneas pasabes 111 42
— EXCEPHONAL variineiririrrsisinseinintirs et e st s e sisss s ens e — 1,281
{Increase)/decrease in stock of shares and UNIES ..eovvveverceireecrenerreesessriserssasssessssseseresssneses 219 {568)
INCIEASE 1N AEDIOIS 1vvveeenriirriirretiseiisserrtesisstestesstsssesassarsssssatssessnessssnnessessnsssssorsrsessasnsonnesss (1,080) (2,600)
Increase/{(decrease) In CIEAITOES ....vivvirrecinniereerertiinirsssessesasiserersessnssssssasrasscssuesssessassnns 4,465 (2,533)
......................................................................................................................................... 15,695 6,076
Net cash inflow before exceptional Items ......cccveeerrvieerceessmrmescssesseraressssssserssssnssesesasrares 15,695 4,795
Inflow related t0 eXCeptional JEEMS wuvuvcerieieciicresisnensiisisrirs et ssesnen st stsstssesgsstssssesans — 1,281
Cash inflow from OPErating ACTIVITIES vvvuuicirsseivrnsnesnssssnrarersesssenssssareressaressssstsosenssssrsnsss 15,695 6,076
(b) Returns on investment and servicing of finance
INLErest TRCEIVEM .viiriiinirersreirerrceesseeseesressnessesssessesasrnressssaesseesaerssesesassssesmnsssesnnasnssasassssaseans 637 494
DHVIAENdS TECEIVEL .evvivreireereierinirnineeesiermesssernssssssssssasssentesnatossesssbessnstisbarnssnsseesssnssrensasnes 41 15
INEEFESE PAIL oviviviiiiiscrcsrisronsisirensbssisieeererasnesesensassassensbsbasssassessestsassssmsesbabistasassensrbssess (321) {269)
Cash inflow from investment and servicing of fiNANCE ..cocvveeivecerrrsrerereseesresaererssasssseresone 357 240
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

30

2001 2000
£000 £000
(c) Capital expenditure and financial investment
Purchase of tangible aSSeLS ....vvcceiiiiicniinrrrisrase e ssste s s b sa s e s sasas s sene (2,520} {261)
Purchase Of INVESIIMENIS cuivevirrivvrvsssisesiessinermirerseerssissserneressressrissssstsrmsnrsssssstsssssesorsasesssanss (3,812) (4,304)
Purchase 0f OWD SHATES ..ovvviriiciicieecrr e rs s e e cssassassssasesrasessnsessnasansasasnsses (532} (1,820}
Cost of own shares transferred tO emMPIOYEES c.overvrrrrriveiinsenesrirretienaeseessrsnestssssrnensrasarsass 569 —
Sale Of tANEIDIE ASSELS vuivirieririiirieieriesiis st tasesssss b snsstas e seste s s s saebe s s se s sas e b s b eRs e s s e snie b 110 218
Sale Of INVESLINEIILS 1vvvveectiacreesrersvereissnssescsrsrnesasssesssasssasnersrssseresshesstornessesresssssssssssssessnsosssses 4,272 3,739
Cash outflow from capital expenditure and financial investment . (1,913} (2,428}
(d) Acquisitions and disposals
Cash element on acquisition of subsidiary undertaking .........cccercerrmrmrceesiecmrreninininiene {1,093) —
Net cash acquired with SUBSIGIATY vceiveirriereesrrerressvsnvaneneresnsensiees reeeeeerererberbs e b anerr ks shssane 545 —
Cash outflow arising on acquisitions and disposals ........ceeereinmniiimcnco.. {548) —
(e} Financing
ISSUE Of SHATES 11veeesircissetitirct e st ses e ese s s e sates s b sesses e sasasssesn s e b e st sbasesanesnastartanen 1,180 44
Cash inflow from fiNANCING ....coceirireirieiis i rssesssssresasesses e bessessesrarssssasasssrassssss 1,180 44
(f) Analysis of net debt
31 January 31 January
2000 Cash flow 2001
£000 £000 £000
Cash and dEPOSILS v.veveeerrienrrinrerreseerererisesssiseessnirssernsiasssessossnsssssbersassrararsen 6,495 6,760 13,255
Bank OVerdraft .......necennninrrriisninianrsresssstasssssasses e ress s sarssnsanssss (1,287) {2,781) {4,068)
................................................................................................................... 5,208 3,979 9,187
LLOAN NOTES weevvvvrrrriririearisesriessresseessenserssissmsssessnerssssrssessessasessnsstessebnssnsnssssssbassssetrussrssssbeesssnsssnsssnssssnnssbasens {2,761)
NEE FUINAS crvieriirnrrsrersnesessieassisseeseresressersasssssssressnssesessssssssiatessarstsssnossossesssrebssssssaasarsssessssssassrseranesnssasessessas 6,426
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Accounting policies

The significant accounting policies adopted in arriving at the financial information set out in these financial
statements are as follows:

Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards.

Basis of consolidation
The group accounts consolidate the accounts of the company and all its subsidiary undertakings. The profit before
tax includes the results of subsidiary undertakings from their effective date of acquisition.

As permitted by section 230 of the Companies Act 1983, a separate profit and loss account of Edinburgh Fund
Managers Group plc is not presented.

Turnover
Turnover represents the amount receivable for the year in respect of income from fund management services and the
net profit derived from open-ended fund trading.

Operating lease payments
Operating lease payments are charged in the profit and loss account in the year in which they are due.

Pension contributions

The majority of the group’s permanent employees are covered by a funded defined benefit pension scheme.
Contributions are calculated by external actuaries and charged to the profit and loss account over the estimated
service lives of the employees.

Goodwill
Goodwill arising on consolidation is capitalised and amortised over a period of 20 years.

Depreciation
Fixed tangible assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. The rangible assets are writren down
to their estimated residual value on a straight line basis over the expected useful lives of the assets as follows:

Frechold property 50 years
Office furniture 7 years
Motor vehicles 4 years
Office equipment 3 years
investments

Listed investments are valued at market prices. Unlisted investments are included at a valuation determined by the
directors based upon, where appropriate, latest dealing prices, net asset values and other latest known accounting

information.

Deferred taxation
Deferred taxation is provided for on timing differences which are expected to reverse in the future, including those
arising on the unrealised appreciation of investments.

fForeign currencies

Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are converted at the rates of exchange on the last day of the financial year.
Transactions involving foreign currencies are converted at the rate ruling on the date of the transaction. Foreign
subsidiaries are translated using the closing rate method. )
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Accounting policies-contd

Stock of shares and units

These are held by the management companies for the purpose of QEIC and unit trust trading and are valued at the

lower of cost and net realisable value.

32

2001 2000
£000 £000
Turnover
Fund managerment INCOME ....ovueeruerrrerressermrersensiessssaserassssstossstnssesessessssssssnsmrsssssessissstans 36,130 29,513
Net profit from OEIC and unit trust trading .....coereseseriineremsssinrensesssssererssesssrasssesesssnss 210 422
TUTTIOVET 1ueiiiineriisrmnienssattiosssneseirssessssesatsstarassssts sessssssannrss bossssssssspnte sbssnessteressssassssssssssatsiss 36,340 29,935
Administrative expenses
Administrative expenses include:
Remuneration paid to the auditors
and their associates — AUAIE FEES cevrrrirecersceneirsrsnss et s e e s s 47 44
= OLHET crrvererisireeseereerars b tonaseesseerersbisrensrmarasstssissnaerarsrnssbssssinans 134 97
DEPLECIALION 1uiviresreernvirissstirisseieseessartsr e e sne e res st s s ba s rh bS8 Esa e me e e bsbE R oA et embabe e b e rAvaeas 392 434
Operating lease payments — land and buildings .....ccvveenimiimmsmen s, 583 522
— Office EQUIPIENE ..oivicveirrenrerereritssrrrmeesse s ssistssensenssnsisssssasanne 104 62
Audit fees paid in respect of the parent undertaking amounted to £7,000 (2000 - £7,000).
Note: During the year, additional fees of £12,000 were paid to the auditors which formed part of the cost of
acquisitions.
Director and employee information
Average number of employees of the group (excluding non-executive directors) 239 (2000 - 205)
Salaries and DOMUSES ......cviieiiierinerecsssessteneerarne e ristesessesnesnesrossssnsnsnssneatssserasresrsssasiasasanee 11,948 9,872
SOCIAL SECULITY COBTS 1uriurmraiiririnissssssesisiistsnassssssssssess e as st basss s e rebada b o b nat b s ssmse b st b 1,302 1,017
Pension SCHEINE COBLS wuuvvirrrerrrsrssrnesssrerenssrasssesiressassssssisrsrstessasssssssesesserstessssesssssssassnassssessas 1,105 879
OUhEr PEDSION COSIS vueuirteetrrenersiireireesestersssneasasssstsassssseresssresersennsssssensssrsseisesssasasstansssensese 30 38
......................................................................................................................................... 14,385 11,806
Directors’ remuneration (including pension contributions)
FEES ottt s e e e s e s e Kb e e se e b b S be s era e b AL A RS b nan 97 75
Other eIMOIUMEILLS ..iiieeieieierisinisriressessssasisssassessestssnstasbesaesesstorsabastasrssssssssesssnsnsnaresssestans 511 546
......................................................................................................................................... 608 621

Detailed information concerning directors’ emoluments, shareholdings and options is shown in the remuneration

report on pages 16 to 19.

Edinburgh Fund Managers Group Annual Report and Accounts 2001



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2001 2000
£000 £000
Gain on disposal of investments
Realised gain/{loss) ON INVESIMENLS 1.cccvereerrereerernrereresseressssssrecasssresssssrrsnsassssssserarsssararsnssons 489 (1,416)
Loss brought into account at 31 January 2000 ......c.cceomesererimseseresssmensessesscsrsssoressresesns 9 1,944
Gain since 31 January 2000 on disposal of INVESLMENTS 1.eoernrueererenesnrmmreessinsessnsireseasesses 498 528
Other income
Ordinary
Income from listed INVESHITEIILS ...evvcirsreerrirrsiessseerenseressesessesmnssassasesessmaesnsssssssssssasmssssenses 22 6
Income from unlisted INVESTIMENES ....ccvorervursrscseinsnsrrermresiasssssnssreresssseermnnnsssssessaressrssssisssssns 19 9
IIEBIEST cuviririciiencttas e e e sree e as e st erasanasasssse s rapasnbessnssensmenreshsse st neen et sene s esarras st e e 641 479
OHRET ottt r st ste e s ersaer et st cere st sre s sanssssessabessresaassnssnssersatans sesnertesesnensanane 111 42
......................................................................................................................................... 793 536
Exceptional
Exceptional income in the previous year represented compensation for the loss of the management contract of
Edinburgh Japan Trust,
......................................................................................................................................... — 1,281
interest payable
Interest on bank OVErdraft....uiiiiiiciiiinirisrsreteesnsneesteseseesssnneresnessesses e srssassssnssnsarers 225 269
Interest on unsecured guaranteed loan notes 2000-2003 ....coveeecneicimrennieresrsenensssareses %6 —
Amortisation of discount on deferred consideration ........vvienmsenresisiisiesecsssnsssinsrresceraens 113 —
......................................................................................................................................... 434 269
Taxation
Corporation tax at 30% (2000~30.1%) on net profit fOr Year ......ccunmrrmsecrereesmmrsriecresses 3,695 3,525
Transfer from deferred tAXATHON .o sttt bssse s st sasssssens 22 39
(Overprovision)funderprovision in PrEVIONS YEAL ..vecwrreerrioveesssesssrerassaasasssessssarssssssessses (80} 52
......................................................................................................................................... 3,637 3,616
The tax charge includes provision for tax on the exceptional items .....coceeeererrervreresnrarreenns — 383
Dividends
Interim dividend of 8.0p (2000 - 8.0p) per share paid 1 November 2000 ...ccccvevcrnnen. 2,252 2,202
Final dividend of 17.0p (2000 ~17.0p) per share payable 21 May 2001 .....cc.c.ccovrerennn 4,762 4,646
......................................................................................................................................... 7,014 6,848

The proposed final dividend will be paid on 21 May 2001 to shareholders on the register at the close of business
on 27 April 2001, The ex-dividend date will be 25 April 2001.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2001 2000
£000 £000
10 Earnings per share
Profit AftEr TAXALION ..cveeveeviesseerseerserenereriessiessesserssssressssssesssassassessassensessasrsesrssssessaorasaresinns 8,573 8,488
Adjustments:
GOOAWILL ..cvirrerrersins s s s s seessabasas e sane e bos s seasasaennes b oae s benaeandsReotosbesaes bubesssssutsnns 246 —
EXCEPUONal HEMIS 1uvvveeririssisiisistins ettt ssss s s s ssissss seata s s s snsa bbb s et sn s — (1,281}
Taxation attriburable ..o e — 383
................................................................................................... 246 {898)
Profit excluding goodwill and exceptional items and after taxation .......ooovccvinnvriessiiannne 8,819 7,590
Basic weighted average number of shares Outstanding .........coecrecriirrinereeresninresressssnnene 28,086,009 27,551,041
Number of shares under option that would have been issued....eeeeeresiinsinnnrmreriinsnns 1,887,975 580,100
Number of shares that would have been issued at fair value ....ocveecerrireernnnieessanieanes (1,573,708) (531,929)
Fully diluted weighted average number of Shares ..ccvvvrerieiincinnrmrssminsen. 28,400,276 27,599,212
Basic earnings Per Share ......cviecisiisnsiiiniiecsiinss s st ss s e 30.5p 30.8p
Basic adjustments for eXCeptional IEMS ...vevisriressenrminresmimesssionissssimisis s onssssensas S — {3.3p)
Basic adjustments for goodwill......cuvvvriiiniisii st 0.9p -
Basic earnings per share (excluding goodwill and exceptional items) .....vovvrcernririsrirerinans 31.4p 27.5p
Fully diluted earnings per SRALE .....cvercrermiereinsnsiererisserarisssssrssessssresssrsrrssssssssssssresesssane 30.2p 30.7p

In addition to basic earnings per share, earnings per share {excluding goodwill and exceptional items) is disclosed in
the profit and loss account. This figure is the headline earnings per share used by stock marker analysts when making
comparisons with previous years and other companies.

Basic weighted average number of shares outstanding included an adjustment for the shares held within the employees’

benefit trust which are not beneficially owned by employees as those shares have no dividend entitlement.

Consolidated
£000
11 Intangible assets — goodwill

Cost
At 31 January 2000 ...t rers ettt vesassraerens st esre e e b reses e a A AR S bbb s bR b S r e s babhes —
AITION c. ettt te st r s e r e s st e s bt s aea e e ser b4 e b e e s reand S bss b s At raa e 05 e E RS E S srmnb bedbabebbear e bhepobs 7,388
At 31 January 2001 ....occrierosiiniceninecsseerennreereosiesrmsresssesasssesresarsssessaasessressesesaesassrassarsrasassasaenseserbisasassasars 7,388
Amortisation
At 31 January 2000 ...ttt st s b b s e ba b A e s nen b b Sa s s e n e 0a —_
Charge fOF YT viviiiiirariisriosiassssessssssnesisssessssssssrsssssasssassessresssinnsnsassssssssseressesasessases tveseesrrasssbreasnesnese 246
At 31 JanUAry 2000 ..ovioeiviimiiireiises et snsiss et est s tns e e sne s st rap e s s e e e a e e et e At st srpesaa s s e SR e san s panas e 246
Net book value
AL 31 January 2000 ......ccciiiicnicrrnrrsssiee e e irssasssessneress s st assasssessmrstssasatassansros bessraesanssnd st s ransnnessssns —
AL 31 JANUALY 2001 i iiriniicrerresrssiesreerersresressuesaesrasrasart bresarassessassissbesaresrarssbatitirasseves e babssnnesrasirsss 7,142
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Office
Freehold furniture and Motor
property equipment vehides Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
12 Tangible assets
Cost
At 31 January 2000 ... e seres —_ 2,049 355 2,404
Acquisition of subsidiaries .. 2,076 82 58 2,216
ADItIONS 1ecveeveerrerireressenssnesesnrasessssesassasssnsssssnesstesssensassases — 291 153 444
DHSPOSALS 11ervrrresrserenrrsresmarssessssseranssestrssaseasssnsanssressarnarssosssnnses — (8) (234) (242)
At 31 January 2001 ...ovrirmicsnnmresresnuermrsrinssssstessssssssmesns 2,076 2,414 332 4,822
Depreciation
Ar 31 January 2000 ..o st ernses —_ 1,645 145 1,790
Charge fOr YEar .covvierreesinrccesmnnnssnsmsesrnmsessssisisssessssssenseresasss —_ 294 98 392
DiSPOSALS covreeecciiae ettt Vessresntbraserennnnanene — (7} (136} (143)
At 31 January 20071 ....ooiiiimiccnneerssesasesnssteseessssserannes — 1,932 107 2,039
Net book value .
At 31 January 2001 ...t 2,076 482 225 2,783
At 31 January 2000 .c..cooreireircrieinnine s sresta s essssssens — 404 210 614
The company is committed to the following operating lease payments in the year ending 31 Janvary 2002:
2001 2000
Office Office
Property equipment Property equipment
£000 £000 £0D0 £000
Operating leases which expire:
— WIthifl ONE YEAT .eevrriireecinstsiniseenantsnssnesesnssnssessaranssreenasnsses 20 — 4 31
— i) ONE 10 fIVE YEALS cvvverrerrisrarsrrsrvessaerarsssesssssassnsesassossenseses 64 115 72 31
— over five years ......... tresrreberarsr et benesra e anae 428 — 408 -
............................................. 512 115 484 62
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Consolidated Company
£000 £000
13 Investments
Market value 31 January 2000 ......c.coovvrvviinrninnnans eestesee e eaesesn et s st s e et s e st e e 8,922 86
Unrealised appreciation 31 January 2000 ........oivvviveerenmnsriininneesessssrsssirsensmssssssssnes {1,057} {169}
Cost 31 January 2000 ....coccivciimiiinnicniiisnnisnsessrsnessssessrsssssstsssssnssss sassissesssassisssresrass 9,979 255
AQQITIONS AL COSE truerrrerrreerersrersraniirereressiasenassessssressesstassnssessessreresassessrassessesrarssteoresassarsnensans 4,760 —
DiSPOSALS AL COSLrtrrrierrninriresrirtireresnsrssisssssesessessrs st stis e sestss s asaarssassesssassessareeassssassnsnsnnsssas 3,783 -
Cost 31 January 2001 ...cecevsiiinrsrrmrnins it ioinrnrsrsessrs sensnsssssssatsssssnnnsnnbsbs it stbnsrsssssssssbesbons 10,956 255
Unrealised appreciation 31 January 2001 ........cocvrvmerermrmrirsinineremssssissssosnrissssssssssns (1,737) (222}
Market value 31 January 20071 ......ooovvioriinmnirnnirrer s st e s prsesssssssrrtsassosasssasses 9,219 33
2001

Consolidated Company Consolidated Company

£000 £000 £000 £000

Listed — UK .ocoinienvernerenersonns Crerrasserranetbs bereere s s nr e et bensarnrans 7,598 — 8,002 —
UNUSTED oo vvereersoierinsinsesnessessessesssesssssersssessosssnnsrnerassssasnsenes 1,621 33 920 86
............................................................................................ 9,212 33 8,922 86
Consolidated Company

£000 £000

T4 Own shares

Cost 31 January 2000 .....cveviiiicinincrcnrmniinesiesrisresisessessnsrssssesssiesssssssssassssessasssersssassrases 2,128 2,128
AdCITIONS AT COBT vrarurrrntiniirirtirietensesssis et e seesse b st b eese e eenesabas s esesnrre s ed et basa s nesassrsbastbranes 532 532
Transferred to beneficial ownership of employees ..o, {569) (569)
Cost 31 January 2001 ...ccveevriiiiriessrrsimrrsseisssseenesssassssassssssesssassassssessntesassssnssersassassasas 2,091 2,091

The own shares are held in an employees’ benefit trust. These are shown in both the consolidated balance sheet

and the company’s balance sheet at cost in accordance with accounting practice. Details are shown in note 21,
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Company
£000
15 Subsidiary undertakings
Cost 31 January 2000 ..ottt e rsrssssssnssesssssssssssnisssssssrsnsssesss e sns DT, cerrsaneas 85,606
Cost of acquisitions........... resre st rresbt e be s s nes IR rrresesenee esssseeens resnnene Cressiserass s raes 10,574
Dividend out of pre-acquisition profits ........oeveee vrsrsrsssnsrens Setsetisresreeissstre s s ss s sss s eR s ssss st s bea R rissan (999)
Cost 31 January 2001 ......cvvrrvrriiiininirimrrmsnssserrssminsssesrress s rersrsssssssaeases v e, RUORN 95,181

On 2 June 2000 the company acquired the venture capital management company Northern Venture Managers
Limited for an initial cost of £6,057,000. In addition, a deferred consideration of up to £3,000,000 will be paid
subject to certain growth targets being achieved by April 2003, The discounted value of the deferred consideration of
£2,441,000 has been included in the cost of subsidiaries acquired during the year.

The assets and liabilities of Northern Venture Managers at the date of acquisition were as follows:

Fair value
Original adjustments Fair value
£000 £000 £000
Fixed asset investments .......coeev.n. rreeresaesnnaane roreastesrenn rresbser e etierteenes 602 347 249
Tangible fixed assets ...cuiermiienniririnresessnninesinnnnns resrsasess s e e r et bas 140 — 140
Cash at Bank ...ttt sesr et esse e e sanstesssesessareensressnns 545 — 545
140 —_ 140
(664) _ (664)
763 347 1,110
............................................................................................................................................... 7,388
rhsar et enerens ettt rneransnens resnererneres eererere s rasasressareenaaranssenren ehverneneres e 8,498
Discharged by:
Cash payment .....oeeevvnreenrens E e L EE R raTreteeae e RTaae b be R e et ee b SR LS AL raanarSRe s At anes b e RS ae T R ae R e n b ngean 976
TSSUE OF 389,794 SHATES vvevreerrrsissiervrerrneesvsesiassarsssscesssessesstreesesessassssteneseressssesssmssssssssiessrveniesssstrssesseessas 2,203
Issue of unsecured guaranteed loan notes ....... erresstanneaeanes restrnrrns hterees et s sae e st e aere TV 2,761
Expenses of acquisition ............. rersetsireaetenns et rn et et e e s b s bR r g SRS eSS e ren TR RS 117
b TR ebsbteeseneennenen Cerarrerses e ras et as e sae e s e e st e ne P s e e A e e se e ea e as e ne e sra e sansaanene tereneans 6,057
Discounted value of deferred consideration......... Ceabesieraerrrteseatesasraer TeasaseesaraeT b ataaneesasar T sarnrnnsare rrerrrens 2,441
Cost Of ACQUISIEION 1vvvvvvnvrirersrercenrnssrecsnes rrreeesressens vasresernnrasns rersasesanresans rresessenrren errersssneres rersisesrenere T 8,498
Contribution to the group’s cash flow
Cash inflow from OPErating aCtVItES ..............cocevueeemeresiesiareeseseeeneestseseeseesesssesseeesessersstseseseeserastsceseneen 933
Taxation ...........couue. rrsrasrerarens reeessbsbarsteeneenen crrereterenereres verererererenes B rrerrsrerees R - {(53)
Returns on investments and servicing of INANCE ............cooccieeerenreinniinesaemsssssnssssssssssessesessassssssssmssses 40
Capiral expenditure and financial investment ,.,,............. (100}
820
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15 Subsidiary undertakings—contd

Northern Venture Managers Limited made a profit after tax of £471,000 for the 13 months to 31 January 2001. The
analysis of profits for the period to 1 June 2000 and for the period from 2 June 2000 was as follows:

Pre-acquisition  Post-acquisition

£000 £000
TULTLOVEL covvivercintrreereeissssstsesnesiorasesaierssesnesesersssstossssnssssssbnrssesisssnsaesessnnnnsssssorabessasssnsssosassne 925 2,172
AdMINISIEATIVE EXPEIISES 1reveerrernressssssiirneessssssesasatsrtssisnsssrss staressessesessssssassesssansssssessesarnsas 810 1,700
OPETATINE PIOLIL 1iverireriresiissersiensressnsssnernsraressstassassesesiornesrersesssarssssassssortererssssanmssessesssnnssnenn 115 472
Interest and Other INCOME ....coivmirrivritinrenerevisssirisss st sssereereersessererrrssssassrenmestssssrernsasessssneranss 50 40
Profif DEFOFE LAXATION c.ccvvveeerrsniieneresesrenssiessiaestsisssnsrressainissrssssassessasesresssnssstessttssssnsnnaesssnesas 165 512
TAXATION 1evereeerarrrrreorrnmmisressersmssssssersssssassssressnsessnsssrsnssssssssssnnsssststissntsesssessebssrssasnnsstnssssssen 41 165
Profit for the periods to and fLom ACQUISIEION ...cveeeeereicieneeesseciessrsresesiessseesessesssssnesssssssans 124 347

Amortisation of goodwill attributable to the acquisition in the period was £246,000.

On 6 December 2000 the company acquired James Keiller (Strathtay) Limited {subsequently renamed Edinburgh Fund
Managers (Properties) Limited) for £2,076,000. The purpose of the acquisition was to acquire Strathtay House in Dundee.
The assets and liabilities of Edinburgh Fund Managers (Properties) Limited at the date of acquisition were as follows:

Fair value

Original adjustments Fair value

£000 £000 £000

Tangible fiXed ASSEES ....viurirrirrecsrerisnasrisessaressesnesessisnesssssesserssasasssenssasossnen 1,344 732 2,076

COSE Of BOQUISTHON wvevverviresansosiesssesssennnressitsss e ssssessassere et tasssssmess shsmsssss besssssesestssssssnsanssstssns smsssbasasesonsnss 2,076
Discharged by:

Cash payment ......ccevvvvevurnerns SerareesrtrersbesrasateTseateEETIS YOS esaYaR NSNS ar e ST LR e s At aatr eera e see s e ansana st er e arat e rasreats 2,025

EXPEnses Of ACAUISITION 1.uiuivuirrrrcrsimiseseesmsseriaers e isesssn st s systaessassspess st serebessesesens st sntassess s ke snassesssgsneans 51

COSE Of ACGUISITION. .euvvurevesreserrerurersrrecsrsirsnsresssaressssessrssisssesessussssssessessensatssrssesssesesssessassessesmrntsssasssessasenses 2,076

Edinburgh Fund Managers {Properties} Limited was incorporated on 28 June 2000 and made a loss of £24,000 for the
period from 28 June 2000 to 31 January 2001. The analysis of profits for the period from 28 June 2000 to § December
2000 and for the period from 6 December 2000 to 31 January 2001 was as follows:

Pre-acquisition Post-acquisition

£000 £000
TUITIOVEL 1iiiiiiiiiiiinnien i tisse i e et tet s tete e e eerasesa e aesnrassssssssnnnrrsbesan nrrasnssaensnnessssssssanererasen — —
AMINISIIATIVE EXPELISES .veuvrtrreeerverennsrereessrracrarsnssossermsnsressstesssssssrnasessssmrersesessssssnsressssesnsses 6 —
OPELALING LOSS wveverereiiesersrecesseereestnaeeriraessesassntsseassessstasesesssssssssssassssesnssssssssnssrssssstoses (6) —
INEEFESE PRI sttt ea e st s ere b et e s e b e n o {18) -
TAXALION. vvrvereremirsirresenencsuersasesmseesmmsassesensessspasasaseresrastasessentaresesensassssssnesessntsrursasassssasnasases — —_
Loss for the periods to and from aCQUISILION ..uiucrenreevrisnsserienmrsssssnreresssssssssavasiesssrsteresssin (24} —

There have been no transactions since the date of acquisition,
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15 Subsidiary undertakings—contd

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The share capital of the subsidiary undertakings consists solely of equity shares. The following are the principal

subsidiaries of the group:

Registered/
Name incorporated  Nature and place of business % owned
Directly held subsidiary undertakings
Edinburgh Fund Managers plc Scotland  Investment management {UK) 100
Edinburgh Unit Trust Managers Limited Scotland  Unit trust and OEIC management (UK} 100
Edinburgh Fund Managers (Private Clients) Limited  Scotland  Investment management (UK) 100
The Edinburgh Securities Company Limited Scotland  Investment company (UK) 100
Edinburgh Oil Management Limited Scotland  Oil and gas management {UK) 100
Edinburgh Fund Managers (Canada) Inc Canada  Pooled fund management (Canada) 100
Northern Venture Managers Limired England  Venture capital fund management (UK) 100
Edinburgh Fund Managers (Properties) Limited Scotland  Property holding company (UK} 100
Indirectly held subsidiary undertakings
Edinburgh Unit Trust Managers (Ireland) Limited Ireland Unit trust management {Ireland} 100
Fdinburgh Fund Managers (Bermuda) Limited Bermuda Investment management {Bermuda) 100
Edinburgh Fund Managers {Trustees) Limited Scotland  ESOP trustee company (UK) 100
2001 2000
Consolidated Company Consolidated Company
£000 £000 £000 £000
16 Debtors
 Amounts falling due within one year:
Management fees receivable .....cuvuvvereecssivneresiessecssrrenemreess 4,275 — 4,230 —_
Debtors for shares and units sold or cancelled .......ocvvervirnnee 4,939 — 3,933 —_
Deferred consideration on sale of Dunedin Ventures ............ 486 — — —_
Other debLorS cveauiivrrreerereniesrirreene s reresesss s s sesessessseseseses 407 — 387 —
Prepayments ... eeeisiniiisriemessisssscsnsmeesssrstiassnsmsissssnnsessnsses 947 — 835 —
............................................................................................ 11,054 — 9,385 —
Amounts falling due outwith one year:
Amounts owed by subsidiaries ........eevernrrrirrcesenesnnnsrereseenes _ 11,547 —_ 10,030
Deferred consideration on sale of Dunedin Ventures ............ — — 455 —
Deferred taxation:
Accelerated capital allowances .........c.ouieveerrrreeenesranereeesenes 15 — i3 —
Other timing differences .....ceeeeerrimnsereneimeneresonsreeenes 47 — 71 —
............................................................................................ 62 11,547 539 10,030
............................................................................................ 11,116 11,547 9,924 10,030

The decrease in deferred taxation on accelerated capital allowances and other timing differences from
31 January 2000 to 31 January 2001 of £22,000 has been transferred to the profit and loss account (see note §).
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2001 2000
Consclidated Company Consolidated Company
£000 £000 £000 £000
17 Other creditors
Creditors for shares and units
repurchased or Created ...c.ouveeeiciiinercsraneresrsssiinarersssressnrnes 5,066 — 3,005 -_
Amounts owed 10 SUDSIIATIES c.vvvervreeerriiresceertneenesnsnecsiennes — 9,286 — 10,021
ACCIUALS covnvverrrarereiiisrrneereee e e seessrerersseererasersesssesssssaenes 6,176 2,630 3,382 —_
Trade CreditOrs v ivvvnersiarernrssiorrseessssessaessrsttesarssnsstessasseses 1,140 — 1,024 —
Unsecured guaranteed loan notes 2000-2005 ......coevveeererens 1,035 — — —
Provisions (see note below) .uuevvvvcerenmenrerecmssmrecsesnnnirssses 328 — 378 —
............................................................................................ 13,745 11,916 7,789 10,021
NIC on

Provisions: Pensions  Shareschemes  share options Total
£000 £000 £000 £000

AE 3T JANUALY 2000 1 reereemermieesmeanesessseesesmosssseessesemstsnsesssens 30 348 - 378
Provided dUrifng YEar .....oeveroieninnresssincessernsiecesiesesnsesaerens 22 231 45 298
Utilised during year ......co.eererermrueseceescorrcssesesasrssessssasassasaens —_ (348) — {348)
At 31 January 20071 ..o 52 231 45 328

The pension provision represents an amount held in an unfunded unapproved retirement benefit scheme. The

provision for the share schemes represents an estimate of the share enhancement payable in respect of the group’s

share incentive scheme. The provision for national insurance contributions in respect of unapproved share options

granted after 5 April 1999 is calculated on the proportion of the gain which would have arisen between the

market value of the shares on 31 January 2001 and the price at which the options were granted,

2001 2000
Consolidated Company Consolidated Company
£000 £000 £000 £000
18 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Unsecured guaranteed loan notes 2000-2005 .......ccceccevnerenen 1,726 1,726 — —
Discounted deferred consideration .......vveerreveeererresessessseens 2,553 2,553 — —
............................................................................................ 4,279 4,279 —_ —

The unsecured guaranreed loan notes were issued as part of the consideration on the acquisition of Northern

Venture Managers Limited. The total value of loan notes issued was £2,761,000. The loan notes are redeemable,

subject to certain restrictions, during the period 30 June 2001 to 30 June 2005. The maximum amount which
may be redeemed during the next year is £1,035,000 and is included in other creditors.

The discounted deferred consideration represents the discounted value of £3,000,000 which is payable in June

2003 and is subject to certain growth targets being achieved by Northern Venture Managers Limited.
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Number of shares £000
19 Called up share capital

Authorised
Ordinary shares of 5p each
At 31 January 2001 and 2000 ..o s seenssessa s s sessass 43,000,000 2,250
Allotted, called up and fully paid
At 37 JAanUAry 2000 ...ooeeeiiinirieceiiecissrrssenns s s s s rssesseneses et seasna e sas s eass seasens 27,839,884 1,392
Iss116d AULINE YEAT cuevrimnisrsrcimniie s srese et sass s e sea st s sss s bsassssonsnsaens 571,794 29
Issued during year on eXercise of OPHLONS vroevvieerererrermrererisrermsisessessonrsbivessrsnsissassesnsstiss 51,406 2
AL 31 JANUALY 2007 cnvereiiirenrerrerireire s tisesesssessrsasesssssssssetnssssneratsnsmaseresssienmesnrstos 28,463,084 1,423

Buring the year a total of 51,406 ordinary shares were allotred following the exercise of options under the EFM
Group Executive Share Option Scheme and the EFM Group Savings-related Share Option Scheme for a votal
consideration of £195,000.

On 2 June 2000, 389,794 shares were issued as part of the acquisition of Northern Venture Managers Limited. On
6 June 2000, an additional 182,000 shares were issued through a placing in the market, The total consideration for
these shares issued was £3,188,000,

Options relating to share option schemes outstanding at 31 January 2001 to subscribe for new ordinary shares
were as follows:

Subsaription Last date when Number of shares
price options exercisable 2001 2000

Executive share option schemes

210D e 7 June 2000 .....iiiecreneiiiinninenressiitosaes s biaennsenesstssanns — 5,000
308D oo aenees 21 JUNe 2002 .ot strss st et e 30,000 30,000
366D i 21 June 2003 ..o s e s 35,000 75,100
BO4D it 26 May 2004 ...oeeeviricic it arerne st snnsss e snns 180,000 185,000
726D reeirrerrrnsss it aeans 5 Ocraber 2005 ..vvvvivicininerinnisnnrsrsssssseresnssrsesestsenes 190,000 190,000
699D oot 24 March 2006 ............... Cerrsesesee e ss st ba b s s e s b baes 175,000 175,000
592.5P vt 30 September 2006 ......ccoveiniiiisnrecncnr s 659,000 696,000
54750 et 31 March 2007 ..coeiornenceenmetrciseserssssssessssrsssanes 62,000 62,000
S532.5D cicrerrreriieneneresresesaees 25 March 2005 et e sneeens 359,500 359,500
582.5D et stsarens 5 May 2005 .ovvervirriereresneseiesraninrr s e snserasss s 30,000 30,000
317.5D v recnnnresesirnens s 24 September 20085 .....coniiiicineeninsrnrsseseeeanes 30,000 30,000
407.5D corveienreesinnrre s rresiea e 4 May 2006 ..oevirrieicecceennire et et ssssenssnas 440,000 440,000
439D st 23 September 2006 ..ovvvvvvviiverernrsrrniessiesserevssesssarenss 44,000 44,000
13 SO 24 March 2007 ....ccvviriirercersmiesensamnne e ssssssessnsnsssesnes 400,000 —
BOLD oo e 31 March 2007 o esvecriirerercerssessiecsssrsssresresessisnen s 20,000 —
B32.5D it enreenrnnnaeens 30 Seprember 2007 ..ooviiesreeseisisriere st senssssserne s 30,000 —

......................................................................................................................................... 2,684,500 2,321,600
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19 Called up share capital-contd

42

Subsaription Last date when Number of shares

price options exercisable 2001 2000

Savings-related share option schemes

R T:10] OO 1 June 2001 coorireereiecnnerersreccssessssssensseessressssnssressssesans — 1,306

4E3P crrrirrnnerarrnesneaiisassnenas 1 June 2002 ...oovieiiiireerireesresreessesssnsesinsrressosssssissssnasnans 18,475 21,604
......................................................................................................................................... 18,475 22,910

Outstanding savings-related share options over existing shares at 31 January 2001 totalled 323,311 shares of which
59,201 are exercisable before 1 December 2002 and 264,110 are exercisable before 1 December 2004,

Capital Share Special Profit
redemption premium capital Revaluation and loss
reserve account raserve resarve account Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
20 Reserves
Consolidated
At 31 January 2000 ......occicomsiinirrcieer e ccevessreeiann 183 468 — (1,057} 11,436 11,036
Retained profit for the year ......ccocevvivvvrarvnnnerane — — — — 1,559 1,559
Is5UE Of ShATES «vvvvveirrvirrerecrrerecerereesnerersisresssaseaes — 3,352 — —_ —_ 3,352
Movement in revaluation of investments............. — — — (680) 9 (689)
At 31 January 20071 ..c..cvvvveerrrrecsnnssinessnerenssnnens 183 3,820 — (1,737) 12,986 15,252
Company
At 31 January 2000 .....cvcvereecceniirnscersrenessreseens 183 468 75,177 (169) 4,845 80,504
Retained loss for the year ....ovvvervviceriirrieesennnnes — — —_ — (1,399 {1,399)
Movement in revaluation of investments............. —_ —_ — (53) — {53}
IS511E O SHATES vvvvrerrererriserirssesiesessesessesaseesasnsseseenes — 3,352 — — — 3,352
At 31 January 20071 ..ooiriiiiniiinvrrrrnenrieraesseenns 183 3,820 75,177 (222) 3,446 82,404

Cumulative goodwill written off to reserves to 31 January 2001 amounted to £84,530,000 (2000 —~ £84,284,000).

There are no non-equity interests in the reserves.
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21 Employees’ share schemes

The company has an employees® benefit trust and an approved profit sharing scheme to increase share ownership
amongst the staff in order to align the interests of the staff with other shareholders. A subsidiary company
Edinburgh Fund Managers (Trustees) Limited acts as the corporate trustee of The Edinburgh Fund Managers Group
Employees’ Benefit Trust and The Edinburgh Fund Managers Group Profit Sharing Scheme.

The employees’ benefit trust is used to hold shares for the benefit of employees who elect to use all or part of their
bonus payable under one of the three cash bonus schemes to acquire shares. These cash bonus schemes are an
Investment Scheimne (for investment performance), a Salesmen Scheme (for new business) and a Discretionary Scheme
{for staff who do not participate in either of the other schemes). Employees electing to receive shares (Deferred Bonus
Shares) in lieu of cash will receive an enhancement {Matching Shares) of up to 60% of the number of Deferred Bonus
Shares purchased with their after tax bonus. The Deferred Bonus Shares are held within the employees’ benefit trust
for the beneficial ownership of the employee and, subject to the employee continuing to be employed after three years,
the Deferred Bonus Shares and Matching Shares wiil be transferred to the employee.

The profit sharing scheme is Inland Revenue approved and open to all employees of the group with a minimum of
one year’s service. Each year, subject to certain profit targets being met, shares will be purchased and held within the
scheme for the benefit of participants. If the shares remain in the trust for three years they will be released to
participants free of tax. The first award of shares was made in May 2000 in respect of the year ended

31 January 2000. The number of shares held at 31 January 2001 in the profit sharing scheme was 55,000.

A summary of the movement during the year of the shares held within the employees’ benefit trust and the profit
sharing scheme is as follows:

Employees’ benefit trust Profit sharing scheme
Non benefidally held Beneficially held Beneficially held

Matching Deferred

Unallocated Shares Total Bonus
000's 000 000's 000's 000's
At 31 January 2000 ....eeevreevreeesrcsneinnennen 486 26 512 43 —_
PULCRASES uvveevreereenrrerreesseeseesesssesnesseesns 75 —_ 75 — —
Profit sharing scheme .........coreecveirnnannnn. (55) - (53) — 55
Bonus scheme .....occeeiriecininisiessnssccnnsnreeres {131) 49 (82) 82 —
Transfer to employees/leavers vowvirinens 1 (1) — (2) —
At 31 January 20071 .vcciieeninienienes 376 74 450 123 55

The 450,000 shares which are not beneficially held for employees are included in the balance sheet at a cost of
£2,091,000 (market value — £3,167,000). These shares have no dividend entitlement. The unallocated shares will be
used principally to satisfy the share options outstanding under the savings-related share options scheme.
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24

22 Pensions

The principal pension scheme provides retirement benefits based on salary close to retirement for eligible group
employees. Employees who are not eligible for this scheme are members of defined contribution schemes, Employers’
contributions are charged to the profit and loss account. The assets of the schemes are held under trust separately from

those of the group.

Contributions to the scheme are charged to the profit and loss account to spread the cost of pensions over employees’
working lives with the group. The contributions are determined by a qualified actuary on the basis of triennial
valuations using the projected unit credit method. The most recent valuation was as at 1 February 1998. The
assumptions which have the most significant effect on the results of the valuation are those relating to the rate of
return on investments and the rates of increase in salaries and pensions. In the calculations, it was assumed that the
investment returns would be 6.25% per annum, that salary increases would average 3.5% per annum and that present
and future pensions would increase at the rate of 3.0% per annum.

The defined benefit pension scheme cost for the year was £999,000 (2000 — £862,000). The charge was after a
deduction of £446,000 (2000 — £385,000) in respect of the amortisation of the existing surplus. The amortisation is
over 14 years, the assumed average remaining service lives of the pensionable employees.

The most recent actuarial valuation as at 1 February 1998 showed that the market value of the scheme’s assets was
£27,482,000. The assessed value of those assets represented 129% of the value of benefits that had accrued to
members, after allowing for expected salary increases. The next actuarial valuation will be as at 1 February 2001.

Due to the impact of Inland Revenue restrictions, part of the normal benefit for one member is provided through an
unfunded unapproved arrangement. The cost of unapproved benefits has been determined by an actuary using
financial assumptions which are consistent with those used to value benefits in the Edinburgh Fund Managers

Group plc Retirement and Death Benefits Plan, A provision of £52,000 {2000 — £30,000) is included in respect of the
cost of providing the unapproved benefits accrued to 31 Janunary 2001 (see note 17),
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23 Financial instruments

The group’s financial instruments comprise equity shares, cash balances, a bank overdraft and debtors and creditors
that arise directly from its operadons. As permitted under FRS 13, Derivatives and Other Financial Instruments,

short term debtors and creditors have been excluded from these disclosures.

The interest rate and currency profiles of the group’s financial assets at 31 January 2001 were as follows:

Total No interest Floating rate

£000 EQ00 £000

SEELLNE cvevreritecerririersnersrrstensesssbsssnrsrtsnss e sass e sresstassesrerasseressnastessssbesssnnresas 21,155 8,265 12,890
US DOMLAT coveeviiiirinier et rieeeser s inssaesasssbesssssss bt s tassnsssssssanersssnsesssssssanensesas 298 — 298
OThET CUITEIEIES vuvverriiirrirsisiinnisrisssinessssissnessnssasesssssessssapsssnmssnsessessanssrsnsaness 948 874 74
................................................................................................................... 22,401 9,139 13,262

The no interest financial assets do not have a maturity date and principally comprise fixed asset investments. These
are subject to stock market movements. The floating rate financial assets principally comprise cash and deposit
balances which earn interest at rates which fluctuate according to money market rates, Non-sterling cash balances
are subject to exchange rate movements.

The group’s financial liabilities at 31 January 2001 were the bank overdraft of £4,068,000 which is in sterling, has a
floating interest rate and no fixed repayment date and the unsecured guaranteed loan notes of £2,761,000 which
have a floating interest rate and are repayable between 30 June 2001 and 30 June 2005.
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Year ended 31 January 1992 1992 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1599 2000 2001
£m £m £m fm £m £m £m £m £m £m

Funds under management 1,906 2,391 4,011 3437 3,538 7,638 7,256 6,622 8,035 8,566
l £000 l £000 { £000 ‘ £000 l £000 \ £000 ' EQOO ) £000 \ £000 \ £000

Shareholders® funds 15,045 15711 17,002 21,848 26,439 26,502 7,868  7.615 12,422 16,675

Fund management income 3,738 9,693 17,072 22,339 18913 30,544 29,468 26,693 29,513 36,130

Net profit from QEIC

and unit trust trading 522 1,383 1,415 1,603 709 585 546 308 422 210

Turnover 9,260 11,076 18,487 23,942 19,622 31,129 30,014 27,001 29,935 36,340

Administrative expenses

(excluding goodwill) 6,047 7,202 10,643 11,458 9,595 14,604 15977 17,962 19,907 24,741

Goodwill — - — —_ — — — —_ — 246

Operating profit 3,213 3,874 7,844 12,484 10,027 16,525 14,037 9,039 10,028 11,353

Profit on disposal

of investments 90 (57) 1,028 214 447 (34) (68) 45 528 498

Other net income 1,480 1,182 903 1,043 1,496 1,475 578 604 267 359

Profit on ordinary activities

before taxation and

exceptional items 4,783 4,999 9,775 13,741 11,970 17,966 14,547 9,688 106,823 12,210

Exceptional items — — — — 799 (5,408) 2,414 2,002 1,281 —

Profit on ordinary activities

before taxation 4,783 4,999 9,775 13,741 12,769 12,558 16,961 11,690 12,104 12,210

Taxation 1,326 1,616 2,741 4250 3,997 4222 5127 3,770 3,616 3,637

Profit on ordinary ,

activities after taxation 3,457 3,383 7,034 9,491 8,772 8,336 11,834 7,920 8,488 8,573

Minority interesc 10 12 11 g 8 7 9 (1) — -

Profit for the financial year 3,447 3,371 7,023 9,482 8,764 8,329 11,825 7,921 8,488 8,573

Earnings per share excluding

goodwill and exceptional items  18.6p 181p 37.2p 497p 423p 40.2p 356p  23.6p 27.5p 31.4p

Dividends per share 13.0p 13.5p 22.0p 24.0p 25.0p 25.0p 25.0p 25.0p 25.0p 25.0p
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Financial calendar

Announcements, ordinary share dividend

payments and the issue of the annual and

interim reports may normally be expected in

the following months:

April -

May -

September -

October -

November -

Preliminary figures and
recommended final dividend
for year announcad

Annual report and accounts
published

Annual general meeting and
final dividend paid

Interim figures to 31 july and
interim dividend announced

Interim report for half year to
31 July published

Interim dividend paid

Annual general meeting

This year’s annual general meeting will be

held at Donaldson House on Friday 18 May
2001 at 12,15 pm to be followed by a buffet
lunch. Shareholders are asked to reply on the

enclosed card if they will be attending the

meeting.

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
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CORPORATE LEGAL STRUCTURE

Edinburgh Fund
Managers plc

Chairman:
lain Watt

Directors:

Mike Balfour
(Chief investment Officer,
Managing Director)
lain Beattie
Graham Brock
Graham Campbel!
Alistair Currie
David Currie

Alex Gowans
Carole Haddow
Jim Hay

Rod MacRae

David McCraw
Graham McGeorge
Ken McKenna

lan Massie
Catherine Miller
Harry Morgan
Colin Peters

Jamie Sandison
Nigel Whittingham

Edinburgh Fund Managers Group plc

Chairman:
Colin Ross

Deputy Chairman:
Sir Angus Grossart

Chief Executive:
lain Watt

Directors:
Mike Balfour
lohnnie Blair

Donald MacDonald
Angus MacDonald

Edinburgh Unit Trust
Managers Limited

Edinburgh Fund Managers
(Private Clients) Limited

Chairman: Chairman:
lain Watt lain Watt
Directors: Directors:
Mike Balfour Alan Aitchison

Alan Bathgate Graham Brock

Marianne Cantley Harry Morgan
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Notice is hereby given that the sixth annual
general meeting of Edinburgh Fund Managers
Group plc will be held at the registered office of
the company, Donaldson House, 97 Haymarket

Terrace, Edinburgh, on 18 May 2001 at 12,15 pm

for the following purposes:

Ordinary business

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

1. to adopt the reports of the directors and
auditors and the financial statements for the
year ended 31 January 2001;

2. to declare a final dividend of 17p per share;
3. to re-elect Mr | W Blair as a director;

4, to re-elect Sir Angus Grossart as a director;
5. to re-appoint KPMG Audit Plc as auditors;

6. to authorise the directors to fix the auditors’

remuneration;

7. that, in substitution for any existing authority
under section 80 of the Companies Act 1983

(the “‘Act’}, but without prejudice to the exercise

of any such authority prior to the date hereof,
the directors be and they are hereby generally
and unconditionally authorised, in accordance
with section 80 of the Act, to allot relevant
securities (as defined in section 80(2) of the
Act) up to an aggregate nominal amount of
£474,000, such authority to expire on

17 May 2006, unless previously revoked, varied
or renewed by the company in general meeting,
save that the company may, at any time prior to

the expiry of such authority, make an offer or

enter into an agreement which would or might

require relevant securities to be allotted after
the expiry of such authority and the directors
may allot relevant securities in pursuance of

such an offer or agreement as if such authority

had not expired;

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS

8. that, in substitution for any existing power
under section 25 of the Act, but without
prejudice ro the exercise of any such power
prior to the date hereof, the directors be and

NOTICE OF MEETING

they are hereby empowered, in accordance with
section 95(1) of the Act, to allot equity securities
(as defined in section 94(2) of the Act) for cash,
pursuant to the authority under section 80 of the
Act conferred on the directors by an ordinary
resolution of even date herewith (the ‘section
80 authority’}, as if section 89(1} of the Act did
not apply to any such allotment, up to an
aggregate nominal amount of £474,000, such
power to expire on 17 May 2006 (o, if earlier,
on the revocation of the section 80 authority),
unless previously revoked, varied or renewed by
the company in general meeting, provided that
such power shall be limited to the allotment of
equity securities:

{i} in connection with an offer of equity
securities open for acceptance for a period
fixed by the directors to the holders of
ordinary shares in proportion (as nearly as
practicable) to their respective holdings of
such ordinary shares (but subject to such
exclusions or other arrangements as the
directors may consider necessary or expedient
to deal with legal problems under or resulting
from the application or apparent application
of the laws of any territory or the
requirements of any regulatory body or any
stock exchange in any territory or in
connection with fractional entitlements or
otherwise howsoever); and

(ii) other than pursuant to sub-paragraph (i)
above, up to an aggregate nominal amount
of £71,157;

save that the company may, at any time prior to
the expiry of such power, make an offer or enter
into an agreement which would or might require
equity securities to be allotred after the expiry of
such power and the directors may allot equity
securities in pursuarnce of such an offer or
agreement as if such power had not expired; and

. that the company be and is hereby generally

and unconditionally authorised, in accordance
with section 166 of the Act, to make market
purchases {within the meaning of section
163(3) of the Act) of fully paid ordinary shares
of 5p each in the capital of the company
(‘shares’), provided that:
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(i} the maximum aggregate number of shares
hereby authorised to be purchased shall be
10% of the issued share capital of the
company as at the date of the passing of

this resolution;

{ii} the minimum price which may be paid for
a share shall be 5p {exclusive of expenses);
and

(iii) the maximum price {exclusive of expenses)
which may be paid for a share shall be an
amount equal to 105% of the average of
the middle market quotations {as derived
from the Daily Official List of the London
Stock Exchange) for the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the
date of purchase;

such authority to expire on the earlier of
17 November 2002 or at the conclusion of the
annual general meeting of the company to be
held in 2002, unless previously revoked, varied
or renewed by the company in general meeting,
save that the company may at any time prior to
the expiry of such authority enter into a
contract to purchase shares under such
authority which will or might be completed or
executed wholly or partly after the expiration
of such authority and may make a purchase of
shares in pursuance of any such contract.
Catherine C J Miller -
Secretary (. GAMAM
Edinburgh, 18 April 2001

Registered office:
Donaldson House

97 Haymarket Terrace
Edinburgh EH12 5HD
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Note
Holders of ordinary shares are enritled to artend

and vote at the meeting,

Members must be entered on the company’s
register of members 48 hours before the time
appointed for the meeting. If the meeting is
adjourned for more than 48 hours then, for
members to be entitled to vote, they must be
entered on the company’s register of members

48 hours prior to the time fixed for the adjourned
meeting. Any such holder may appoint another
person {or persons) (whether a member of the
company or not) as his proxy (or proxies) to
attend and vote on a poll in his stead. Proxies
must be lodged with the company’s registrars,
Computershare Services ple, PO Box 457, Owen
House, 8 Bankhead Crossway North, Edinburgh
EH11 4BR not less than 48 hours before the time
appointed for the meeting. Completion of a form
of proxy will not prevent a holder of ordinary
shares from attending or voting in person should
he so wish.

If approved, the final dividend will be paid on
21 May 2001.

. l’q,,



FORM OF PROXY

I/We
; BLOCK
o CAPITALS
PLEASE

being (a} member(s) of Edinburgh Fund Managers Group plc hereby appoint

or, failing him, the chairman of the meeting as my/our proxy to vote for mefus and on my/our behalf at
the annual general meeting of the company to be held on Friday 18 May 2001 at 12.15 pm and at any
adjournment thereof.

For T Against

Adoption of directors’ and auditors’ reports and financial statements

Declaration of final dividend

Re-election of J W Blair™® a5 a director

Re-election of Sir Angus Grossart™ @@ a5 a director

Re-appointment of KPMG Audit Plc as auditors

Authorisation of directors to fix the remuneration of the auditors

Authorisation of directors to allot ordinary shares

Limited disapplication of pre-emption rights

Authorisation to purchase own shares

Signed Date

4 Audit committee member
@ Nominations committee member
¥ Remuneration committee member

Notes:

1. Proxies must be lodged at the address overleaf not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the
meeting, together with the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed or an extract from
the Books of Council and Session or a notarially certified copy of such power of attorney.

2. A corporation should execute under its commeon seal or the hand of a duly authorised officer.

3. Members are entitled to appoint a proxy of their own choice. If desired the name of such proxy can be inserted in the
space provided. If no name is inserted in such space, the chairman of the meeting will act as proxy.

4, Please indicate how you wish your votes to be cast by placing a cross in the appropriate spaces. Unless otherwise
indicated the proxy will vote as he thinks fit or will abstain,

5. In the case of joint holders the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in person or by proxy, shall be accepted
to the exclusion of the votes of the other joint holders; and for this purpose seniority shall be determined by the order
in which the names stand in the register of members.

6. Completion of this form of proxy will not prevent members from attending the meeting and voting in person should
they so wish.

7. A proxy need not be a member of the company.
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Head Office
Edinburgh Fund Managers Group plc
Donaldson House

97 Haymarket Terrace

Edinburgh £x12 SHD

Telephone: 0131-313 1p0g

Www.edfd,com
0800 028 6759

FUND MANAGERS
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